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Reliance Mutual Insurance Society Limited

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The directors of the company who were in office during the year and up to the date of sigring the financial
statements were

S CREEDOCN FIA, CERA, MAAA FSAL (Age 61) Chatrman
(Appointed 11/03/2008, Chairman 01/06/2008) Non-executive Director

Seamus I1s a qualified actuary He i1s a former partner at KPMG where he led the UK actuanal practice
from 2000 to 2003 and was the deputy leader globally Previously he was Chief Executive of Bank of
Ireland’s Iife assurance business and also at Abbey Life Ireland He Is a former member of the council of
the Institute of Actuanes and 1s a member of the insurance and reinsurance stakeholder group of the
European lnsurance and Qccupational Pensions Authanty He is also a non-executive director of Baille
Gifford Life, MetLife and (in ireland} RGA International Reinsurance and VHI Healthcare

W AL MSc FCMA (Age 58) Chairperson of the Audit & Risk Committee
{Appointed 28/10/2010) Non-executive Director

Wai currently has a portfolio of senior advisory roles including Accenture Financial Services UK and China
Construction Bank UK Wai s a non-executive director of Prudential Assurance and QBE and a director of
The City UK Prior to these roles, she was Chief Executive of corporate pensions provider Tactica
Insurance and before that held several senior executive posts at Barclays ~ culmunating as Director of
Global Servicing Was has held the role of UK Finance Director (Life and General) for Royal & Sun Allance
and aiso UK Finrance and Actuarial Director of Hill Samuel Investment Services Group

M GOODALE BA FIA (Age 57) Chief Executive
(Appointed 01/07/2006) Executive Director

Mark 15 a qualified actuary Prior to joining the Society he was a director and the General Manager of
Ecclesiastica!l Life Limited and prior to that, Chief Financtal Officer of Manulife (UK) Mark 1s Chairman of
the Assoclation of Financiai Mutuals having served on that Board for over five years

C LERPINIERE BSc ACIH (Age 54)
(Appointed 28/09/2012) Executive Director

Chns 1s a Chartered Insurer He joined the Society in Apnl 2008 and, as Head of Operations, he 1s
responsible for the service our clients receive and also for our information technology Prior to joining
Relrance Mutual, he held senior management positions at Fidelity and GAN Life and Pensions

Chnis was appointed as a director in September, because the board had concluded that governance and
orgamsation resilience would be enhanced by making additional executive appointments

C MILLS FFA (Age 49)
(Appointed 28/06/2012) Executive Director

Cameron Joined the Society in September 2009 As Chief Actuary he 1s responsible for all the Society's
actuanal functions Pnior to Reliance Mutual, he was Intenm Chief Actuary at Baroda L&G Life Insurance
Co Ltd supporting Legal & General in their joint start-up in Mumbai He has also served three years at
Resolution Life and 21 years at Standard Life Cameron was appointed as a direcior in September,
because the board had concluded that governance and organisation resiltence would be enhanced by
making additional executive appointments




Reliance Mutual Insurance Society Limited

R P J RANDALL BSc FIA (Age 63) Senior Independent Director
{(Appointed 01/07/2004) Non-executive Director

Jim Randall 1s a qualified actuary who spent 25 years in the Iife and health reinsurance industry with
Munich Re, Liberty Re and General Re He 1s Charman of the tele-underwnting company MorganAsh

F B SANJANA MA FCIl (Age 57) Chairman of the Investment Committee
(Appointed 01/07/2004) Non-executive Director

Barry Sanjana spent 25 years working for the investment management subsidiaries of Royal
Insurance, Commercial Union, CGU and Friends Provident He was Chief Investment Officer in both
the CGU and Friends Provident Group He i1s also a non-executive director of Police Mutual and is the
Charr of thair Investment Committee

N A SHERRY ACIH (Age 55) Chairman of the Fair Member Benefits
(Appointed 24/03/2010) Committee

Non-executive Director

Nigel has almost 35 years’ experience Iin the financial services industry He held sentor positions at

Pearl Assurance, NP1, Prudential UK and most recently as Chief Operating Officer and acting Chief
Executive of MGM Assurance In addition to being a non-executive director, Nigel undertakes short-
term intenm management assignments in the Financial Services sector
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

2012 was a momentous year for the Saciety with the overwhelming endorsement by members of the
Creditors Scheme of Arrangement

The Scheme clanfies how the Society 1s run and the future entittements of policyholders, particularly those
with profits policyholders that prior to the Scheme effective date were in the Rellance Mutual With Profits
Sub Fund

The Scheme provides us with a firm and certain base from which to continue our successful sirategy of
writing new non-profit business and acquiring blocks of business from other insurers

Investment Markets

Domestic gilts remained solid over the year, as the continuing Eurozone crisis allowed the UK to retain its
perceived 'safe haven' status for bond investors However, towards the year end there was a growing
expectation of a flow of cash from bonds into equities  Quantitative easing in major econormies sustained
a lower interest rate level than long-term investors might wish to see

Mixed economic data on both sides of the Atlantic added to equity market volatility, though by the end of
the period a clear picture was emerging of low growth/no growth in the UK and Europe, contrasting with a
recovery emerging n the US, based in part on shale ol and gas China began stimulating its economy
and this seems likely to continue following the change of leadership, however mining stocks did not make
a sustatned rally until new year 2013 Overseas markets saw a rebound in the Japanese and Pacific
regions, after the large falls of 2011, whilst North America continued to make steady progress Sterling
strengthened against major foreign currencies duning the year, and this presented a headwind for the
performance of our overseas holdings which, nevertheless, showed good returns

New business

New business volumes of the enhanced smoker annuity were very strong 1 2012, with sales 90% above
those in 2011

Member Bonuses

All bonus rate changes continue to be made with the aim of ensuring the Society treats with profits
policyholders fauly and in accordance with the Soctety’s established Principles and Practices of Financial
Management (see page 24)

Generally bonus rates set in early 2012 had increased year on year, with reductions in the rates awarded
to With Profits Sub Fund 2 (former Cnterion Life Assurance policies) and Reliance Mutual With Profit Sub
Fund

As set out In the Principles and Practices of Financial Management (PPFMs) a six monthly review was
carned out for With Profit Sub Fund 5 (former University Life policies), this resulted in further bonus rate
increases In this fund

With-profits and mutual governance

The FSA 1ssued a Policy Statement in March 2012 concerning protecting with profits policyholders via with
profits governance The apparently pragmatic approach to achieving efficient strong governance is
welcomed by the Society and 1s substantially consistent with our own practice

The Socety continues to be fully commuifted to a mutual ethos, and weicomes the reference in the FSA's
March 2012 paper to the broader consumer interest in having a diverse market In financial services
providers in which mutuahty has a future alongside proprietary companies

The FSA 1ssued a further consultative paper on mutuality and with profits in December 2012 The paper
deals mainly with the concern of many with profits mutual that, under current regulations, they could be
prevented from wniting new non-profit business potentially leading to a further reduction in the size of the
mutual sector

The main aspects of the proposals deal with identifying the part of a fund which relates to with profits
5
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policyholders and the part that could be used for supporting business plans Obviously the Scheme of
Arrangement undertaken by the Soclety in 2012 has already implemented this split therefore the major
part of this paper is not relevant to the Society The Society has submitted a response to the FSA on this
paper

Mutuality — we’re in this together

| would like to take this opportunity to congratulate your Chief Executive, Mark Goodale, on his recent
appointment as Chairman of the Association of Financial Mutuals Upon hus appointment, Mark explained
his view that “the media spotlight has regularly focused on the failings of some of our largest financial
PLCs and there is a growing consensus that big business needs to operate more transparently and
responsibly to rebuild consumer trust During this time, mutuals have quietly continued to work closely with
their customers to provide a better experience of financial services  This I1s an important time for financial
mutuals that look after the needs of 20 million people and offer a real alternative to the PLCs With the
support of government and with appropniate reguiation, the financial mutual sector can de so much to
restore public confidence In our industry”

As a mutual, Reliance has no shareholders to pay dividends to, and so is free to concentrate entirely on
delivering products and services that best meet the needs of its customers We believe the regulatory
framework would usefully recognise the substantial identity of interest between mutual societies and ther
members

Governance

Since joining the Board in March 2008 (and becoming Charrman cn 1 July 2008), | have always been
impressed by the Board's commitment to a high standard of corporate governance and, most importantly,
how this 1s balanced within the organssation without being overly cumbersome or expensive We
continued to apply the relevant provisions of the revised Annotated Combined Code on Corporate
Governance for Mutual Insurers during 2012, except as set out in the corporate governance report

The Board recognises that it 1s accountable to members for good governance to facilitate efficient and
effective management in order to deliver value over the long term, within appropriately established risk
parameters The Directors, both individually and collectively, take governance senously and | am satisfied
that our Board operates effectively, is properly engaged on cntical matters and that all Directors set aside
the time required to fulfil their duties  Further details are set out in the corporate governance section 1am
pleased to welcome executive directars Chns Lerpiniere and Cameron Mills to share in the work of the
board

Last year we asked you to vote on the way the Society 1s run This year, to improve the accountability of
the Board to its members, we have adopted best practice so that each director1s expected to stand for re-
election To continue this approach of providing a strang say in how we do things, we are keeping a close
eye on how the government bnngs about binding votes an directors’ pay for listed companies Even
though the legislation is not expected to apply to mutuals, our intentton 1s voluntanly to abide by the
approach expected to be set out in the legislation so far as is practicable — so that you have the
opportunity to see and have comfort in our approach to boardroom pay | will let you know more as
developments cccur

Solvency Il

Solvency Il I1s the new Europe-wide regulatory solvency and reporting regime that all European insurers
will have to comply with [t was onginally due to be introduced on 1 January 2013, but has suffered
numerous delays in developing key elements Currentiy there is no definitive date for implementation but
latest indicators point to 2016 at the earliest The Society has already implemented many of the
governance aspects of the Solvency Il requirements resulting in a stronger infrastructure and control
environment However, as a result of the continued delays in the implementation date the decision has
been made to cease work for the tme being on the reporting aspects of the project

Retail Distribution Review

The Soclety successfully implemented the new requirements ansing from this reguiatory review at the end
of 2012




)

Reliance Mutual Insurance Society Limited

Gender Discrimination

Some European countries, including the UK, had interpreted the 2007 Gender Directive as allowing an
exemption for insurance, thereby permitting insurers to offer different premium rates to males and
females The European Court of Justice ruled on a test case in March 2011 that this was incorrect, and
that insurers would have to remove any gender discrimination in premium rates by 21 December 2012
The UK Treasury provided guidance on the implications for UK insurers, which makes it clear that this only
applies to policies taken out after the due date, so no existing policy 1s affected

The Society implemented the necessary changes by the required date As a result we now offer the same
annuity rates to males and females

The Future

Following the overwhelming support for last year's vote on the way the Society Is run, the next leg of our
journey - to develop a longer term strategy for bringing in new members - s underway We also seek
distribution partnerships with organisations shanng our values, where we supply the life insurance product
A five-year strategy 1s being developed with the aim of growing our membership through trust in our life
insurance products and services We are in the process of assessing what insurance products customers
need - and can relate to - and | hope to be able to share more about progress at the AGM

In the meantime, we will continue to offer our enhanced annuity and seek selective acquisitions of blocks
of business to enhance the scale of the organisation

Staff and Management

The Soctety has been living through some extremely challenging times, as it deals with difficult economic
conditions, with their impact on markets, as well as needing to ensure comphance with a tidal wave of
regulatory attention and change | would like to thank all staff for ther continued dedication, support and
hard work in ensunng that the Socrety continues to meet the expectations of members through this peried

CREEDON
Chairman

2.8 HOW 2013
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

The directors present their report and the audited consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2012 The registered number of Relance Mutual insurance Society Limited (“the Society”) 1s
491580

Principal Activities
The principal activity of the Group continues to be the transaction of long term insurance business
Business Review

The results of the Group for the year, as set out on page 27, show a transfer to the fund for future
appropriations of £10 7m (2011 transfer from the fund of £198m) The total assets of the Group are
£1,775 0m (2011 £1,673 5m)

The resuits of the Group i the year reflect various factors Falling interest rates, narrowing credit
spreads, moderate increases in equity markets and a strengthening of our longevity assumptions have led
to an increase In technical provisions

The total assets of the Group increased to £1,775 0m with the primary factors being the increase in the
vaiue of umt Iinked and non linked investments and the impact of the new reinsurance agreement on
technical provision

The Group has established the groundwork of a five year strategy to grow its membership  Work has
started assessing what insurance products customers need and can relate to

Principal Risks and Uncertainties

Risk management within the Group s addressed by means of a nsk management strategy and a nsk
management and internal controls framework

The Group 1s committed to establishing and maintaining a systematic approach to the identification,
assessment, monitoring, management and reporting of nsk Risk management 1s embedded throughout
the organisation from the Board considering strategic risks and risk appetite at least annually through to
individual staff members discussing nsks (and controls) with their ine managers

The Audit and Risk Committee provide oversight of the risk management framework and associated
control environment

The Group uses this risk framework to assess the impact of nsks on economic capital The process I1s
nsk based and uses ICA principles to quantify capital requirements and to ensure that the Group has
adequate capital to support the growth of the business and to meet the requirements of policyholders and
reguiators

The principal risks from our life insurance business arnse from the need to be able to pay our obligations to
policyholders as they fall due and to maintain regulatory margins of solvency Market and other nisks such
as credit nsk, relating to the performance of those financial assets supporting policyholder hiabilities, are
monitored by our Investment Commitiee on a continuous basis

The Group's assessment of uncertainties Is set out In note 1b to the financial statements and details of
financial nsk management can be found in note 2 to the financial statements
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Rehance Mutual Insurance Society Limited

Future Qutiook

The endorsement of the Creditor Scheme of Arrangement referred to in the Chairman’s Statement an
page 5 has ratified the strategy of the Society and clarified the capttal available for the man groups of
peclicies and members

The Scciety s now looking to expand further by bringing in new members A five year strategy I1s being
developed with the aim of growing our membership through new hfe insurance products We will also
seek growth through continued sales of our successful enhanced smoker annuity, selective acquisitions of
blocks of business and distribubion partnerships  This will add further to the scale of the organisation for
the long term benefit of policyholders

Key Performance Indicators {*KPIs”)

The following KPls are used by the Board to assist # in monitoring the Group

2012 2011

New Business (APE) £6 2m £4 3m Anpual Premium Equivalent (APE) 1s
new regular premiums plus 10% of
single premiums (includmg amounts in
respect of investment contracts)

Total Assets £1,7750m £1,673 5m

Increase/(decrease) in fund for See note 12 to the financial statements

future appropnations £107m  (£19 8m} for further details

Fund for future appropnations £95 8m £85 1m

Regulatory scivency ratio 180% 158%

Number of Employees (FTE) 835 715 Full Time Equivalent (FTE} counts full
time staff as 1 FTE and part time as
05FTE

The Board has reviewed the KPls above and compared them to the business plan and is pleased to report
the improvement in the year Further details of factors which have affected the Group’s capital resources,
and hence solvency, can be found in note 21

Our capital resources are measured against regulatory capital requirements and actions are available to
manage the nsks to solvency from future turbulence The Society 1s keeping these under constant review
with the intention of cutting nsk exposures where appropriate |n addition to the regulatory solvency ratio
quated above, the Society is also required to manage the capital resources on a realistic basis

Actuanal Valuation and Bonus Declaration

Aninvestigation of the long-term habihties at 31 December 2012 has been carned out  The directors have
determined appropnate provisions for the long-term business lizbiliies which have been included in the
financial statements Rates of bonus for the main classes of policy declared by the directors are set out
on page 24

Directors

The directors histed on page 2 held office throughout the year, unless otherwise stated To improve the
accountability of the Board to its members, the Society has adopted best practice so that each director
stand for re-election annually commencing with the Soctety’s Annual Generai Meeting beginming in 2013
All directors except one of the newly appointed executive directors are members and policyholders of
Rehance Mutual Insurance Society Limited Messrs Goodale, Creedon and Sherry have shareholdings in
the subsidiary companies as nominees of the Society No director has any beneficial interest in the
substdiary companies
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Liabihty Insurance

Dunng the year the Soclety purchased and maintained hability msurance for its directars and officers as
permitted by the Compantes Act 2006

Employees

The directors recognise the importance of employee involvement to the Society This 1s maintained by
effective communications, circulars and meetings In additton, employees have been kept informed

through the Staff Consultative Commuttee, which 1s regularly consulted on matters relating to employees’
pay and benefits

The Society continues to give full and farr consideration to applications for employment made by disabled
people Wherever possible it will continue the employment of, and provide appropnate training for,
members of staff who become disabled

Pensions

The Society operated a defined benefit scheme for employees for many years This scheme closed to
future accruals for all but two members in June 2010 In its place, the Society offers a defined contnbution
scheme See note 27 to the financial statements for further details

Corporate Social Responsbility

As a mutual, the Society's pnncipal focus 1s on its members and policyholders However, the importance
of having responsible policies for staff, customers and the community 1s recogmised and the potential
impact of key soctal responsibility 1ssues 1S considered as a matter of course within the overall running of
the organisation

Examples of proportionate and cost effective work in this areaincludes a recycling policy, support of staff

fund raising events and a commitment to Tunbndge Wells as the Society’s registered and administrative
office

Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities

The directors are responsible for prepanng the annual report and the financial statements in accordance
with apphcable law and regulations

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year Under that law
the directors have prepared the Group and parent company financial statements in accordance with
United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice (United Kingdom Accounting Standards and
applicable law) Under company law the directors must not approve the financial statements unless they
are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state of affarrs of the Society and the Group and of
the profit or loss of the Society and Group for that peniod  In prepanng these financial statements, the
directors are required to

» select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently,
make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonabie and prudent,

» state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any matenal
departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements,

» prepare the financial siatements on the going concern basis unless it 1s nappopnate o presune
that the Society will continue in business

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and
explain the Society's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy atany time the financial position
of the Society and the Group and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the
Compantes Act 2006 They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Society and the Group
and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregulanties

The directors are responsible for the maintenance and integnty of the Group’s website Legislation in the
United Kingdom goverming the preparation and dissemination of financial statements may differ from
legislation in other jurisdictions

10
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Statement of disclosure of information to auditors
The directors in office at the time this report is approved, confirm

» so far as each director I1s aware, there 1s no relevant audit information of which the Group's
auditors are unaware, and

» each director has taken all the steps that they ought to have taken in their duty as a director In
order to make themselves aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the
Group's auditors are aware of the information

Financial Risk Management

The Group is exposed to financial risk through its financial assets, financial hlabilites, reinsurance assets
and policyholder rabilbies The key components of this financial nisk are market nsk, credit nsk and
hquidity nsk

These are discussed further in note 2 to the financial statements

Auditors

The auditors, PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, have indicated their willingness to continue in office and a
resolution that they be re-appointed will be proposed at the annual general meeting

By order of the Board

VALVOu

R Eastwood, Company Secretary
2.%5[3[2013

11
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
Compliance with the Code

Aversion of The Combined Code on Corporate Governance was first produced for mutual insurers in July
2005 This was revised i February 2008 and in Qctober 2010 the Association of Financial Mutuals
published a new annctated version (‘the Code’) based on The UK Corporate Governance Code which had
begun to apply to ali companies with a Premium Listing of equity shares in June 2010

The Code attempts to promote better board behaviour by refocusing attention on principles While the
Code does not demand compliance with a ngid set of rules, it does require companies to apply the Main
Principles and report on how they have done so The principles are the core of the Code and the way in
which they are applied should be the central queston for a board as it determines how it 1s to operate
according to the Code

The Board of Relance Mutual 1s commutted to a high standard of corporate governance The Board
considers that it has appled the relevant principles and complied with the relevant provisions of the Code
throughout this reporting period unless the contrary 1s stated below

The Board
The Board takes overall responsibility for the management of the Group, determining

s Sfrategic principles and objechives, annual plans and budgets (and any material changes to them),
performance monitonng and corrective action,
Risk management processes including risk appetite,
Organisational and group structure, and
Pension and remuneration policies

The Board authorises all strategic transactions, major contracts and tems of major capital expenditure,
not In the ordinary course of business, except those defined in its delegated authoriies document it
approves significant changes to investment strategy 1t determines the basis to be used for the valuation of
habihes, declares annual and finai bonuses, and ensures that the Actuanal Function Holder and the With
Profits Actuary have access {o the information they require to discharge thewr respective duties

The Board approves the annual regulatory return to the Financial Services Authority (FSA), the Principles
and Practices of Financial Management {PPFM), and Individual Capitai Adequacy Standards (ICAS), and
accompanying nisk profiles, including ICAS quantificaton The Board ensures that the Society complies
with the rules and reguirements of the FSA, the Annotated UK Corporate Governance Code and all
applicable legislation, and directs the work carried out on the FSA's requirements for Treating Customers
Farrly It approves the Society's new business and acquisition strategy, targets and monitors performance
agamnst forecasts and also approves acquisitions and decisions to cease to operate all or any matenal part
of the Society’s business

The Board approves the Society’s operational policy in relation to the overall administration of business

and has responsibility for the Saciety's system of internal control and the systerns used to identify, mitigate
and monitor risks

During the year the Board compnised the Chairman, three executive directors and four non-executve
directors The Code requires a strong presence on the Board of both executive and non-executve
directors In recent years the Chief Execulive has been the only executive director, however, while
members of management are still required to attend meetings to provide information concerming key areas
of the Group's operations, following external evaluation conducted by Mazars LLP, the Board concluded in
2012 that governance and organisation resilience would be enhanced by making additional executive
appointments Details of each director are shown on page pages 3 and 4 The Board considers that each
of its non-executive directors 1s Independent in character and Judgement Evaluation took account of the
two non-executive directors who continue to serve beyond their sixth year - to ensure that their expenience
within the Board's operations continues to provide benefit to the Group in a suitably independent manner

12
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The Charrman met the independence critena upon appointment The Board usually has six regular
meetings in the year as well as two strategy review meetings Other meetings are convened as required
In 2012 there was one additional meeting An agenda 1s prepared for all meetings and appropnate papers
are prowided {o the direciors in advance of each meeting Attendance at the Board and Board commitiee
meetings during 2012 was as follows

Creedon

M Goodale

RPJ Randall

F B Sanjana

9
W Au 9
9
9
9

N A Sherry

CJ
Lerpimiere

C K Miils 1 1 - - - - - - - -

Directors have full access to the services of the company secretary and may take independent
professional adwice at the Group’s expense If they judge It necessary to discharge their responsibilities as
directors

The dwision of responsibilities between the Chairman and the Chief Executive 1s set out in writing The
Charman has no commitments that impinge on his responsibilities as Chairman The Chief Executive has
no commitments that impinge on his responsibilities as Chief Executive

All directors appointed by the Board must stand for reappointment at the Annual General Meeting (AGM)
following their appointment All directors are subject to reappointment at intervals of no more than three
years The letter of appointment for non-executive directors makes it clear that standard service would be
expected to be two terms of three years, with the possibility of a third term If that appears suitable A
specimen {etter of appointment 1s available on request and on the Group’s website There are plans for al!
directors voluntanly to stand for reappomtment on an annual basis with effect from the 2013 AGM,
although, as this was not resolved to be put into effect in 2012, the provisions of the Code have not yet
been complied with in this respect

Internal controls

The Board of the Society 1s ulimately responsible for maintaining the system of internal control and
monttoring its effectiveness The system of internal control 1s designed to manage rather than eliminate
the nsk of fallure to achieve business objectives and can provide only reasonable and not absolute
assurance against matenal misstatement or loss

The key features of the system of internal control are

« A detalled Board Governance process, setting out a clear organisational structure, roles and
responsthibties, authonties and matters reserved for each Board sub-committee,

« A strategic plan process which sets a medium-term strategy based on a clear understanding of the
risk inherent in the environment in which it operates,

* A planning and budget process that delivers detalled annual budgets and forecasts for Board
approval,

« Management information systems enabling the Board to receive comprehensive reporting of financial
and operational performance,

» A Risk Management function which maintains the nisk management framework and facmtates
management's regular identification, assessment and reporting of the key nsks,

» Asetof formal policies which govern the management, control and oversight of the key nsks faced by
the Soclety,

« Adetalled annual capital assessment on a realistic basis, resulting in a greater understanding of the
financial consequences of the nisks faced by the business, and enabling effective capital

13
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management,

* An Internal Audit function which reports ta the Board an the effectiveness of internal controls in
relation to the key nisks identified Internal audits are undertaken in accordance with an annual nisk
based plan approved by the Audit and Risk Committee, and

» A Compliance function which identifies and monitors the control of our compliance risks and monitors
comphance with regulatory requirements

The Board considers that the controls effective during 2012 are appropnate to the needs of the Society

Certain Group subsidianes are regulated entities, and as such are subject to the supervision of the FSA
over therr activities, including their systems of business control

Business model

The Group's aims are to offer far-value life insurance and investment products to individuals, and to
provide farr treatment, secunity and cost effective service to all policyholders, including those acquired from
other companies The mission statement 1s to grow membership through trust in our Iife insurance
products and services Guiding principles to help in the achlievement of these aims are that

Unit costs do not grow in real terms,

Diseconomies of scale are avoided by ensuring policies added exceed palicies going off,

The solvency margin is appropriate,

Excess surplus 1s distributed to with profit policyhalders in accordance with the Scheme of

Arrangement approved by policyholders on 31 May 2012,

. Business developments are funded by the Ordinary Sub Fund {OSF) in accordance with the
Scheme of Arrangement, and

. Most of the profits from OSF are re-invested into the business, but if sufficient surplus builds up,

this may be distnbuted to all policyholders

A twin-track strategy 1s employed to achieve the aims

. The acquisition of books of individual ife business, and
. The wniting of niche new business product lines through new distnbution channels

Internal supporting strategies are encouraged to further assist by

Maintaining a low cost environment,
. Implementing operationa! effictencies, and
. Treating Customers Fairly

Board Committees

Audrt and Risk Committee

The directors who served on the committee during the year were W Au (as charr), R P J Randall, F B
Sanjana and N A Sherry The committee meets at least three ttmes a year and at one meeting meets with
the auditors in the absence of management The commitiee monitors the integnty of the financial
statements of the Group, reviewing significant financial reporting 1ssues and judgements contained in
them, and keeps under review the effectiveness of internal controls, nsk management processes and
internal and external auditing It reviews and challenges, where necessary, the consistency of, and
changes to, accounting policies on a year-on-year basis It oversees and monitors the development of the
Group’s nsk and control framework inciuding identification, management, reporting and appette for nsk It
also reviews the Group’s arrangements for its employees to raise concems, in confidence, about possible
wrongdoing in financial reporting or other matters Non-audit services provided by the external auditors
dunng 2012 related to preparations for the sale of one of the group’s subsidianes The committee is
satisfied that this arrangement did not impact on the auditors' independence or objectivity The terms of
reference of the committee are available on request and on the Group's website

The minutes of the Audit and Risk Committee meetings are circulated to the Board after each meeting

Nomination and Remuneration Comnuttee
During the period, this committee compnsed the full Board (with the exception of the executive directors
appomted in 2012) and was chaired by the Senior Independent Director The terms of reference set the

14




Reliance Mutual Insurance Society Limited

committee’s role as having delegated authonty to set remuneraton for the Board, to make
recommendations on the structure of remuneration for the senicr management team and ensure effective
Board deliberation by leading the process for Board appointments and reviewing performance annually

The Board authonised the commuttee, within the scope of its responsibilities to
Nomination

¢ Apnually review the size and composition of the Board and evaluate the balance of skills,
independence, diversity, knowledge and expernence,

Act upon the results of the annual review,

Identify suitable candidates for Board appointments,

Plan for the orderly succession of new directors to the Board, and

Determine the membership and chairmanship of the Board Committees

Remuneration

» Set the remuneration for all executive directors including pension rights and any compensation
payments,

e Set levels of remuneratton for non-executive directors to reflect the time-commitment and
responsibiittes of the role but not including any performance-related elements,

» Devise performance-related elements of remuneration to form a significant proportion of the total
remuneration package of executive directors - designed to include financial and non-financial
performance cntena that align their mterests with those of members, give keen incentives to perform
at the highest level, are compatible with the company’s nsk policies and systems, and promote the
long-term success of the Socrety,

¢ Judge where to posttion remuneration relative to comparable companies using such compansons with
caution, In view of the risk of an upward ratchet of remuneration levels with no corresponding
improvement in performance,

* Carefully consider what compensation commitments (including pension contributions and all other
elements) executive directors’ terms of appointment wouid entail in the event of early termination and
avord rewarding poor perforrmance, and

¢« Recommend and menitor the level and structure of remuneration for senior management and for the
organisation as a whole

Details regarding directors’ pay can be found in the Remuneration Report on page 18

Executive directors whose remuneration i1s being considered are asked to leave the meeting The Board is
sabisfied that levels of remuneration are approprate to attract, retain and motivate directors of the quality
required to run the Group successfully, and has carefully considered the position related to similar
organisations in the Group's sector and aiso the increasing tme commitment and extending
responsibilibtes within the role of director Remuneration packages do notinclude any long-term incentive
schemes, but the committee ensures that performance-related elements of remuneration are designed to
ahgn the interests of executive directors with those of members, to promote the long-term success of the
Group and provide keen incentives to perform at the highest level There are no notice perods in excess
of one year for executive directors 2012 was the fourth year that a resolution was put to the AGM to
provide members with an opportunity for an advisory vote regarding the Remuneration Report The result
of the fourth vote echoed previous votes, with aver 90% voting in favour of the report

To further the Board's approach to praviding members with a strong say an the running of their Society, a
close eye 1s being kept on how the government brings about binding votes on directors’ pay for listed
companies and, even though the leygislation 1s not expected to apply to mutuals, the Board's current
intention 1s voluntarily to abide by the approach expected to be set out in the legistation so far as 1s
practicable As part of this development, in February 2013, the Board decided to separate the Nomination
and Remuneraton Committees and Imit membership of the Remuneration Committee to the non-
executive directors and the Chawrman of the Society New Terms of Reference, consistent with the Code,
will be made available on the Society's website

Information is required to be disclosed in relation to holdings of secunties in the Society, particularly those
camying special voting nghts and nghts with regard to control of the Society There are no secunties In
1ssue by the Society Six directors hold one of the Society's policies as required by the Articles of
Association in force at the time they were appointed In a similar vein, one of the executive directors
apponted in 2012 holds a pohicy to ahgn s nghts and interests with the membership These pohicies do
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not have any different voting nghts or controiling effects than those of members holding simifar policies

The Board believes that having a diverse workforce 1s vital to the success of the business The same
principle is applied to the composition of the Board, which strives to cultivate the value thatis brought to
debate and decision-making by directors with diverse backgrounds, expenence, expertise and outlook

The principte 1s to make Board appointments based on menit and overall suitability for the role Subjectto
this principle, and to the availability of appropriate candidates, the aim 1s to increase the percentage of
female representation on the Board, considering the recommendations of the Davies Review, and In the
context of the relatively small size of the Board and the tenure of the existing directors

Investment Committee

Mr Sanjana 1s chairman of this committee The other director who 1s a member of this committee is Mr
Goodale - the other permanent member i1s Mr Cuming, the Investment Manager The terms of reference of
the committee are available on request and on the Group's website The minutes of the committee’s
meetings are circulated to the Board after each meeting More detalls of the Investment Committee’s role
can be found in Note 2 to the financial statements

Fair Member Benefits Committee (incorporating the With Profits Committee)

This committee was established in November 2010 lis role 1s to make recommendations to the Board to
ensure that all members, both with profit and non-profit, are treated fairly when financial management
decisions are made

The responsibilitres of the Committee are to exercise independent jJudgement in making recommendations
to the Board on

» Decisions made on the management of the Society’s estate while balancing any competing or
confliiching nghts and interests of all customers,

¢ Regular reports receved regarding the financtal performance of the Society and the resulting impact
on long-term prospects, and

» The Society’s comphance with the terms of its PPFM

Member relations

The Board s committed to developing member dialogue and involvement The member relations strategy
15 available on request and in the members' section of the Group’s website In 2012, voting members
received at least 20 working days’ notice of the AGM All directors and senior managers attended the AGM
and facilites were provided afterwards to enable members to question them further and meet other
members Not all information recommended by the Code was provided with the AGM notice The
information was detailed in the notice and then sent to all members upon request The Board considered
this a more cost-effective use of rescurces

Member refations activity in 2012 was very much focused on the Scheme vote to clanfy how Rehance
Mutual s run and the future entittements of policyholders Letters to the membership to inform them about
the process and seek feedback were sent out in February and then the voting pack had been issued in
April Letters that were sent out In November announced that the Scheme of Arrangement was
overwheimingly approved at the Scheme Meetings on 31 May and sanctioned by the High Court on 28
June Throughout the process the member relations team were on hand to help the communication
process

As a result of the activity on the Scheme vote, the 2012 AGM was held in July i Tunbridge Wells This
may well have been the reason for the lower attendance at the meeting 19 members attended and thewr
contnibution to the day, including discussions with directors, management, staff and fellow members - both
before and after the meeting - was greatly appreciated To rebuild attendance, the Board plans to revert to
holding the meeting In May at the Channg Cross Hotel in Central London - a more accessible venue for a
membership that i1s spread nationwide

In order to help engagement with members online voting was available for the first ime for the 2012 AGM

8,832 members took the opportunity of voting by proxy, 11% of those eligible to recewe the notice of the
meeting — an increase of 10% over the previous year Of those 8,832, 779 took advantage of the new
onhne voting facility
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The Group’'s website has been maintained to ensure that members are provided with easy access to
faciliies to request information, assistance or to provide feedback

Under the Code, the Senior Independent Director provides an alternative point of contact to the Chairman
and Chief Executive for members who have concerns that cannot be addressed through normal channels
Jm Randall 15 the Society’s Senior Independent Director and he can be written to at the Group's
registered office or contacted directly on SID@reliancemutual co uk Mr Randall has receved tailored
induction in relation to the rcle and has attended the Group’s Head Office in order to be brniefed on the
member relations strategy and to discuss and understand the day-to-day concerns raised by members
Mr Randall also spoke about his role when addressing the AGM in 2011 and 2012

Audit of code compliance

The external auditor has not reported on the corporate governance statement and hence the Code was
not compiled with in this respect in 2012 The Board does not consider such a report to be a cost effective
use of resources The Board 1s committed to ensuning that compliance with the Code 15 mantained
effectively

Going concern

After making enquires and considering the uncertainties disclosed in note 1b, the directors have a
reasonable expectation that the Group has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the
foreseeable future For this reason, they continue to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the
financial statements

The Board continues to moritor industry developments in respect of Solvency I, even though

implementation has been delayed, and are proceeding on the basis that Solvency Il capital requirements
can be accommodated by management of the Balance Sheet
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REMUNERATICN REPORT

in 2012 the whole Board, with the exception of the executive directors appointed in that year, acted as the
remuneration committee From March 2013, the terms of reference of the committee and its constituents
were amended so that it now compnises of the non-executive directors only with the senior Independent
Director as the chairman The committee will determine the remuneration of the Charman, Chief
Executive and Executive Directors  From March 2013, the remuneration of non-Executive Directors shall
be a matter for the Chairman and the executive members of the Board Remuneration packages do not
Include any long-term ncentive schemes Appointments are not for a fixed term and from 2013 all
members of the Board will stand for reappointment at each AGM  None of the Executive Directors have
notice periods in excess of one year Cther than contractual notice there 1s no entittement to termination
payments

Board remuneration 15 set annually with reference to a comparative set of financial services companies
This review 1s done annually with changes made from 1 October An additional fee 13 paid to the
chairperson of the Investment and Audit and Risk Committees as well as the charrman of Reliance
Pension Scheme Trustees Limited

A similar process IS followed for setting the Chief Executive's and Executive Directors pay In addition a
performance related bonus scheme 1s In place for Executive Directors, which I1s payable once a year
based on the achievement of objectives set at the beginning of the year

Mr Goodale serves as Chairman of the Association of Financial Mutuals  He receves no remuneration for
this service

Directors’ Emoluments

Salary/ Benefits Total Total

Fees yle yle

3112 2012 31.12.2011

£ £ £ £

S Creedon Chairman 65,002 - 65,002 61,001
M Goodale Chief Executive 302,348 46,753 349,101 342,215
W Au 37,502 - 37,502 35,501
R P J Randall 32,501 - 32,501 30,500
F B Sanjana 42 500 - 42 500 40,502
N A Sherry 35,835 - 35,835 30,500
C K Milis Appomted 28 September 2012 41,034 3,776 44,310 -
C J Lerpiniere  Appointed 28 September 2012 28,355 2,608 30,963 -
585,077 53,137 638,214 540,219

M Goodale's salary of £302,348 (2011 £299,192) included a bonus of £73,646 (2011 £77,540)
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Directo

rs' Pension Information

This relates to M Goodale, C Mills and C Lerpiniere

benefits

M Geod

C Mills

ale

Defined benefit scheme

- Accrued annual pension at end of year
- Transfer value at end of year

Defined contnbution scheme
- Society contnbution

Defined contnbuton scheme
- Society contnbution

C Lerpimere

Defined benefit scheme
- Accrued annual pension at end of year
- Transfer value at end of year

Defined contribution scheme
- Society contnibution

19

Non-Executive directors do not receive pension

2012 201

£ £
11,819 11,819
223,650 232,835
22,870 22,165
3,868 -
3,315 -
58,992 -
2,835 -
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DIRECTORS' REPORT TO WITH PROFITS POLICYHOLDERS

Introduction

This is the report of the Directors of Rellance Mutual Insurance Society te the with profits policyholders of
the Society on the management of the with profits business during 2012

Background

The Soclety maintains a set of Principles and Practices of Financial Management (the PPFM) that sets out
the way in which with profits business of the Society will be managed The PPFM s avallable directly from
the Society or from the web-site at hitp./fiwww.rehancemutual co uk/pdfs/PPFM-010812 pdf

As aresult of vanous acquisitions between 2004 and 2007, the Society’'s business was divided across 6
sub-funds

* The Reliance Mutual With Profits Sub-fund (“RM WPSF"), and

* With Profits Sub-Funds No 2, 3, 4, 5 and 6 ("WPSF2, 3, 4, 5 and 8")

Reliance Mutuat With Profits Sub Fund (RM WPSF) contained all the business onginally written by
Reliance Mutual, Bnbish Life, Bursiem Mutual, Nation Life, Templeton Life, Eurolife and SEB Trygg Life It
also contains the without profits and unit inked business onginally written by Criterion Life Assurance and

Hearts of Ozak Friendly Society, and the unit linked and tax exempt business onginally written by Time
Assurance

With profits Sub Fund 2 (WPSF2) comprises the former Criterion Life Assurance with profits fund

With profits Sub Fund 3 (WPSF3) comprises the former Time Assurance Ordinary Benefit with profits
fund

With profits Sub Fund 4 (WPSF4) comprises the former Time Assurance Retirement Annuity with profits
fund

With profits Sub Fund 5 (WPSF5) comprises the former University Life Assurance Society business

With profits Sub Fund 6 (WPSF8&) comprises the former Hearts of Qak Friendly Scciety with profits
policies

Following the Scheme of Arrangement (the Scheme) that was approved by the High Court in 2012, the
assets and liabilities were divided between two newly created sub-funds from 1% August 2012, With Profits
Sub-Fund No 1 {*WPSF1"} and the Ordinary Sub-Fund ("OSF™), on the following basis

*» The with profits policies of RM WPSF, and all the assets and habiities associated with
them were allccated to WPSF1

¢ The non-profit policies of RMWPSF and all the assets and liabilities associated with them,
were allocated to OSF 60% of the future surplus {or deficit) ansing each year on this non-
profit business wiil be transferred to WPSF1 or vice versa In the case of a deficit ansing
s Therealstic surplus in RM WPSF, defined as the excess assets above the fund’s llabilities

was aliocated to WPSF1 and OSF respectively in the following proportions 51 25% and
48 75%

« Mechanisms were set up to enable WPSF1-6 and OSF to provide capital support between
the individual sub-funds in the event that such support i1s required

WPSF1 to 6 are closed to new business

Opinion of the Directors of Reliance Mutual Insurance Society

The Directors have reviewed the management of the with profits funds It 1s the Directors’ opinion that
throughout 2012 the funds were managed In accordance with the PPFM with the exception of two areas
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Neither a review of the swaptions portfolio as required under 3 27 of the PPFM nor a review of the vanous
surrender value bases were completed by the end of 2012 These will be completed in 2013 If any
policyholders are found to have been treated unfarrly as a result of the reviews, appropnate compensation
will be pad

It 1s the Directors’ opinion that the exercise of discretion dunng 2012

. was appropriate
. took full account of policyholders’ reasonable expectations and
. maintained fairness between different categones of policy and policyholder

Roles and Responsibilities

The Board of Reliance Mutual has established a sub-committee, the Fair Member Benefits Committee,
with the role of making recommendations to the Board to ensure that allmembers, both with profit and non
profit, are treated fairly when financial management decisions are made The Committee comprises of
three non-executive directors and the chief executive and meetings are held with the With Profits Actuary
and the Actuanal Function Holder in attendance The Terms of Reference of the Fair Member Benefits
Committee can be found on the web-site at hitp /fiwww reliancemutual co uk/pdfs/FMBC-Terms-of-
Reference-May-12final pdf or are available directly from the Society.

The With Profits Actuary, Geoff Ross, has a statutory duty to advise the Board when It exercises its
discretion in the management of the with profits funds ~ The With Profits Actuary must also make an
independent report to the with profits policyholders  His report should state whether, in his opinion, this
report and the discretion exercised dunng 2012 may be regarded as having taken the reasonable
expectations of the with profits policyholders into account

Exercise of Discretion

Regular Bonuses

In February 2012, the Board declared new reversionary bonus rates, for those policies where regular
bonuses may be added, to take effect from 1% January 2012 Reversionary bonus rates were unchanged
from the previous declaration in February 2011 The PPFM describes the considerations taken into
account when deciding upon reversionary bonus rates

With Profits Payouts

For some types of pelicies final payouts are enhanced by the payment of a final bonus In February 2012
new final bonus scales which took effect from 1% March 2012 were declared based on the financial results
at the end of 2011

+ As descrnibed in the PPFM, for RM WPSF, final bonuses are augmented to allow for the
distnbution of profits from non-profit business and the inhented estate within RM WPSF  The
augmentation rate remained unchanged throughout 2012 from the 620% set in September 2010
Final bonuses were reduced to take account of weak performance duning 2011
For WPSF2, final bonus rates were reduced from the last change i September 2011
For WPSF3 it was possible to increase final bonus rates
In WPSF4 there was no overall change to the level of payouts as a resuit of the bonus
declaration

» Asexplained in the PPFM, WPSF5 does not have smoothing cnteria and so final bonus rates are
more volatile than In the other funds In the declaration in March 2012, final bonus rates were
Increased

» The financial health of WPSF6 has continued to improve, and so the special final bonus was
increased for both life and pensions policies

Final bonus rates are normally reviewed once a year in February, however, the PPFM states that they will
be reviewed more reqularly depending upon financial conditions  This proved unnecessary durning 2012
In addition, final bonus rates in WPSF3 and WPSF5 are reviewed every six months to help manage the
velatility of these small funds  As a result of the mid-year review, final bonus rates In WPSF3 remaned
unchanged whereas final bonus rates iIn WPSF5 were increased
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Investment Strategy

One of the areas of discretion of the Board 1s 1n the investment strategy to be followed in each of the sub-
funds Section 3 of the PPFM lists the Principles and Practices that are followed by the Society in deciding
upon the investment strategy for the Soctety Dunng 2012, the investment strategies for sub-funds
WPSF2 to 6 were reviewed in line with the PPFM  The Scheme stated how the assets of RM WPSF
would be split between WPSF1 and OSF Following the implementation of the Scheme the assets were
then reviewed and changes made to align the investment strategy with that outlined in the revised PPFM

WPSF1 has now adopted an approach where the assets are increasingly invested in less volatile assets
for pohicies close to matunty

Wind-Up of Funds WPSF3 and WPSF5

During 2011, the fund size of WPSF3 feli below the £5m thresheld where under the original Scheme of
Transfer the Society may cease to operate a separate fund and may merge the assets and habilities of the
sub-fund with RMWPSF The Society chose not to exercise that option until the Scheme of Arrangement
had been completed This meant that WPSF3 remained as a separate fund dunng 2012 The Society
has declared its intention to wind-up WPSF3 during 2013

The original Scheme of Transfer which estabhshed WPSF5 set a threshold of £5m of with profits habilities
below which the fund could be wound up  The Scheme rebased this level to £10m and as a resuit WPSF5

has fallen below this revised threshold The Society has declared its intention to wind-up WPSF5 during
2013

Changes to the PPFM

The Scheme required a new PPFM to be produced to take account of the splitting of RM WPSF into
WPSF1 and OSF The new PPFM remaned broadly unchanged for WPSF2 to WPSF6 apart fram
reflecting the revised capital support mechanisms established by the Scheme  Although many of the

Practices which applied to RM WPSF were carmed over to WPSF1, additional Practices were required
to reflect the operation of this new fund
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REPORT OF THE WITH PROFITS ACTUARY TO WiTH PROFITS POLICYHOLDERS
To all with profits policyholders
| have considered the annual report from the Directors of Reliance Mutual to with profits policyholders
required under the rules of the Financial Services Authonty and the actions and decisions relating to with
profits policyholders made by the Society dunng 2012
It 15 my opinion that
» thereport s a far statement of how the with profits business has been managed during the year
« the Soclety has exercised its discretion in a reasonable and proportionate manner over the penod
with the exception that the Society 1s not at the date of these accounts able to confirm whether
amounts paid on surrender dunng 2012 in a small number of cases were fair

» the actions of the company have taken into account the appropriate rules and guidance

+ the interests of different classes of with profits policyholders have been fairly taken into account

G M Ross FIA
With Profits Actuary
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BONUS DECLARATION
as at 31 December 2012

The directors have declared annual bonuses for the main classes of business at the rates set out in the
table below for the year ended 31 December 2012 Rates for other smaller classes of business may be
cbtained on application to the Society  Annual declarations of guaranteed reversionary bonuses for the
business now forming WPSF5 and WPSF6 had been discontinued by the predecessor companies before
the businesses were acquired

In addition an interim bonus will be added to the sum assured or annuity of relevant with profits policies
under which a clamm anses by death, maturity or vesting between 1 January 2012 and 31 December 2012
Current rates of interim bonus are equal to the rates declared for the year ended 31 December 2012

A final bonus may be paid on claims ansing by death, matunty or vesting under most classes of with profits
polictes Full details of the rates may be obtained on application to the Society

Rates of intenm bonus and final bonus are not guaranteed and may be altered at any time

With Profits Sub Fund 1

All rates are expressed as percentages of the sum assured, with the exception of Reliance ordinary
branch insurances where the rate 1s a percentage of the sum assured and attaching bonuses

Bonus Rate (%)

Reliance ordinary branch whole life insurances and endowment insurances 200
Reliance industrial branch with profits policies 175
Burslem weekiy tables with profits policies 167
Reliance industnial branch mortuary bonus policies without recurring endowments 180
Relance industnal branch mortuary bonus policies with recurring endowments 140

With Profits Sub Fund 2

55% of the sum of all premiums paid since the last declaration, as at 31 December 2011, other than
premiums that cover special nsks, are avallable as a cash benefit {for Iife policies only) or may be
converted to a reversionary banus using an appropriate actuanal conversion factor Non-premium paying
Iife assurance policies use a notional equivalent premium in a similar calculation

With Profits Sub Fund 3

The bonus 1s expressed as a percentage of the sum assured and attaching bonuses

Main classes of assurance (excluding Adaptaplan and Family Savings Bond) 375

With Profits Sub Fund 4

The bonus 1s expressed as a percentage of the annuity and attaching honuses for deferred annuities and
as a percentage of the basic annuity for annuities in payment

Regular premium deferred annuities (senes 1) 100

Single premium deferred annuities (senes 1) 125

Deferred annuities (seres 2) 1 00

Annuities in payment 300
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF
RELIANCE MUTUAL INSURANCE SOCIETY LIMITED

We have audited the Group and Parent company financial statements (the “financial statements”) of
Relance Mutual Insurance Society Ltd for the year ended 31 December 2012 which compnse the
Consolidated Profit and Loss Account, the Group and Parent company Balance Sheets and the related
notes The financial reporting framework that has been applied in thetr preparation is applicable law and
United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice)

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors

As explained more fully In the Directors’ Responsibilities Statement set out on pages 10 and 11, the
directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they
give a true and fair view Our responsibility s to audit and express an opinion on the financial statements
in accordance with applicable law and International Standards on Auditing (UK and lreland) Those
standards require us to comply with the Auditing Practices Board's Ethical Standards for Auditors

This report, including the opintons, has been prepared for and only for the Company’s members as a body
In accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Compantes Act 2006 and for no other purpose  We do not,
in giving these opinions, accept or assume responsibihity for any other purpose or to any other person to
whom this report 1s shown or into whose hands it may come save where expressly agreed by our prior
consent in wnting

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements
sufficient to give reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from matenal misstatement,
whether caused by fraud or error This Includes an assessment of whether the accounting policies are
appropriate to the group’s and parent company’s circumstances and have been consistently applied and
adequately disclosed, the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by the directors, and
the overall presentation of the financial statements  In addition we read all the financtal and non-financial
information i the Annual Report and Audited Group Financial Statements 2012 to identify matenal
inconsistencies with the audited financial statements  If we become aware of any apparent matenal
misstatements or inconsistencies we consider the implications for our report

Opinion on financial statements
In our opinion the financial statements

» give a true and fair view of the state of the group’s and the parent company's affairs as at 31
December 2012 and of the group's and parent company’s profit for the year then ended,

» have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice, and

» have been prepared In accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act
2006

Opinion on cther matter prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

In our opinlon the Information given in the Directors’ Report tor the financial year for which the financial
statements are prepared 1s consistent with the financial statements
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Matters on which we are required to report by exception

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Companies Act 2006 requires
us to report to you if, 1n our opinion

» adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent company, or returns adequate
for our audit have not been received from branches not visited by us, or

» the parent company’s financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records
and returns, or

» certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made, or

+« we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit

Gt

Gavin Phillips {Senior Statutory Auditor)
For and on behalf of
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors
LONDON

2§ Mo h 2013
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CONSCLIDATED PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT
for the year ended 31 December 2012

Technical Account ~ Long Term Business

TECHNICAL INCOME
Gross prenuums wntten
QOutward reinsurance premiums

Earmed premiums, net of reinsurance
Investment income

Unrealised gains on investments

Other technical income, net of reinsurance

CLAIMS INCURRED, NET OF REINSURANCE
Claims paid - gross amount
- reinsurers' share

- net of reinsurance

Change in provision for claims - gross amount
- reinsurer's share

- net of reinsurance

Total claims incurred

CHANGE IN OTHER TECHNICAL PROVISIONS, NET OF
REINSURANCE
Long term busminess provision - gross amount

- reinsurars’ share

- net of reinsurance

Technical provision for inked lrabihties, gross and net of reinsurance

Net operating expenses

Investment expenses and charges

Unrealised losses on Investment

Other technical charges, net of reinsurance

Tax attributable to long term business

Actuanal losses on pension scheme

Transfer (to)/from the fund for future appropnations

BALANCE ON THE LONG TERM BUSINESS TECHNICAL
ACCOUNT

2012 2011
Notes £000 £000
3 60,746 42,822
(15,425)  (15,553)

45,321 27,269

4 91,990 73,897
4 68,389 -
5 3,768 3,801
209,468 104,967
(119.072)  (109,569)

15,851 16,193

(103,221)  (93,376)

365 (1,104)

106 5

471 (1,099)

(102,750)  (94,475)

18 (76,899)  (74,513)
19 21,787 2,032
(55,112)  (72,481)

20 (27,401) 87,912
(82,513) 15,431

7 (8,757) (8,613)
8 {1,319) (1,357)
4 - (35629)
5 (312) (347)
11 (1,181) 1,469
27 (1,082) (1,197)
12 (10,654) 19,751
(24205)  (25,923)

There are no recognised gains or losses cther than those shown above
The notes on pages 30 to 75 form an mtegral part of these financial statements

Alf activities are continuing
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BALANCE SHEETS
At 31 December 2012

Notes
Assets
INTANGIBLE ASSETS
Goodwill 16
INVESTMENTS
Land and Bulldings 13
Investments in group undertakings 14
Other financial investments 15
PRESENT VALUE OF ACQUIRED IN FORCE 16
BUSINESS
ASSETS HELD TO COVER LINKED 17
LIABILITIES
REINSURERS’ SHARE OF TECHNICAL PROVISIONS
Long term business provision 18
Claims outstanding 19
DEBTORS

Debtors ansing out of direct insurance operations
Debtors ansing out of reinsurance operaticns
Amounts owed by group undertakings

Other debtors

OTHER ASSETS
Tangible assets 22
Cash at bank and in hand

PREPAYMENTS AND ACCRUED INCOME

Accrued Interest and rent

Deferred acquisition costs 23
Other prepayments and accrued inceme

TOTAL ASSETS EXCLUDING PENSION
SCHEME ASSET
DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION ASSET 27

TOTAL ASSETS INCLUDING PENSION
SCHEME ASSET

28

2012 2011
Group Saociety Group Soce
£000 £000 £000 £000
(234) i 273) ]
3,750 3,750 3,785 378
: 1,022 i 1033
1031694 1031258 068724 968231
1,035444 1036,030 972,509 973,045'
2,007 1,774 2293 2,049'
661400 661400 644839 644,839'
55,086 55,086 33.299 33,299'
228 228 122 122
55,314 55,314 33,421 33,421]
357 357 297 297'
246 246 257 257
’ 108 ] 126
1170 828 1,183 954
1,773 1,539 1737 1,634
223 223 330 330
2.001 992 1611 452I
2314 1215 1,941 782
16,478 17,058 16,467 17,026'
251 251 313 313
242 242 167 167'
16,071 17551 16,047 17,506
1774989 1774823 1673414 1,673,280'
i ] 77 77
1,774989 1774823 1673491 1,673,357'




Reliance Mutual Insurance Society Limited

BALANCE SHEETS
At 31 December 2012

Notes
Liabilities
FUND FOR FUTURE APPROPRIATIONS 12
TECHNICAL PROVISIONS
Long term business provision 18
Claims outstanding 19
TECHNICAL PROVISIONS FOR LINKED
LIABILITIES 20

PROVISIONS FOR OTHER RISKS AND
CHARGES 25
DEPOSITS RECEIVED FROM REINSURERS

CREDITORS

Creditors ansing out of direct insurance

operations

Creditors ansing out of reinsurance operations
Amounts owed to group undertakings

Other creditors including taxation and social

security 28

ACCRUALS AND DEFERRED INCOME
TOTAL LIABILITIES EXCLUDING PENSION
SCHEME DEFICIT

DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION LIABILITY 27

TOTAL LIABILITIES INCLUDING PENSION
SCHEME DEFICIT

2012 2011
Group Saociety Group Society
£000 £000 £000 £000
$5,799 95,800 85,145 85,174
982,508 982,508 908,634 906,634
13,391 13,283 13,842 13,729
995,899 995,791 920,476 920,363
661,400 661,400 644,839 644,839
- - 242 242
9,516 9,516 10,024 10,024
411 411 1,269 1,269
181 181 47 47
- 20 - 15
9,570 9,491 10,007 9,942
10,162 10,103 11,323 11,273
1,299 1,289 1,442 1,442
1,774,075 1,773,909 1,673,491 1,673,357
914 914 - -
1,774,988 1774823 1,673,491 1,673,357

The notes to pages 30 to 75 form an integral part of these financial statements

The financial statements were approved by the Board of directors on 2% IS 12013 and were signed

on its behalf by

M Goodale C Mills
Director Director
29
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Reiiance Mutual Insurance Society Limited

NOTES TO THE FiNANCIAL STATEMENTS

1

1a

Basis of presentation

The financial statements are prepared on a going concern basis (see note 1b) and under the
histoncal convention as modified by the revaluation of investments, and on the basis of the
accounting policies set out below The Group financial statements have been prepared under the
provisions of The Large and Medium-sized Companies and Groups {Accounts and Reports)
Regulations 2008 ("S12008/410") relating ta insurance groups  In implementing these provisions
the Group has adopted a modified statutory solvency basis for determining technical provisions

The financial statements comply with applicable accounting standards  In addition, the Group has
complied with the Statement of Recommended Practice on Accounting for Insurance Business
1ssued by the Association of British Insurers in December 2005 and revised in December 2008

Compllance with Statement of Standard Accounting Practice ('SSAP') 19 ‘Accounting for
investment propertes’ requires departure from the requirements of the Companies Act 2006
relating to depreciation and an explanation of the departure 1s given in the accounting policy on
“Investments ~ Land and buildings” below

The Socliety 1s a mutual Iife assurance company  Consequently, the company has taken
advantage of the exemption from prepanng a cashflow statement under the terms of FRS 1
(revised 1296) ‘cash flow statements’

Significant accounting policies
Basis of consolidation

These financial statements consoldate the results of the parent Society with those of its
subsidianes, The Reliance Fwe and Accident Insurance Corporation Limited, Rehance Unit
Managers Limited, Relance Administration Services Limited, FS Management Limited and
Reliance Pension Scheme Trustee Limited  As permitted by Section 408 of the Companies Act
2006, no profit and loss account of the parent Society 1s presented

Due to the immaterality of general insurance busmess in The Reliance Fire and Accident
Insurance Corporation Limited, its results are included with ‘other technical income’ or ‘other
technical charges’, as appropriate, of the long term business technical account

The financial statements producad by subsidianes for inclusion in the Group financial statements
are prepared using accounting policies consistent with those adopted by the Group

Classification of contracts

The Group classifies its products as insurance, investment or investment with discretionary
participation features Insurance contracts are those contracts that transfer significant insurance
risk Such contracts may also transfer financial sk Contracts that do not transfer significant
insurance nsk are investment contracts As a general guideling, the Group defines significant
msurance risk as the possibitty of having to pay benefits on the occurrence of an insured event
that are at least 10% more than the benefits payable if the insured event did not occur A contract
that 1s classtfied as an insurance contract continues to be treated as such until all nghts and
ohligations under the contract expire

A discrettonary participation feature (dpf) is a contractual nght held by a policyholder to receive
additional payments as a supplement to guaranteed benefits Such contracts are commontly
known as “With Profits” or "participating” contracts  With profits contracis may be classified as
either insurance contracts or investment contracts with dpf  In both cases the requirements of
FRS 26 do not apply However, dpf contracts classified as investment are disclosed as such in
the FRS 29 disclosure of financial instruments

Some unit inked contracts, where significant insurance nisk 1s not transferred are classified as
investment contracts  in addition to these unit inked contracts there are certain non inked non
profit (non participating) contracts that have also been classified as mvestment contracts
Investment contracts are accounted for using deposit accounting, under which amounts collected
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are credited and amounts paid are debited directly to the balance sheet as an adjustment to the
liability to policyholders

Premiums

Premiums recewed and reinsurance premiums paid relate to isurance and participating
investment contracts They are accounted for when due for payment

Fee income from investment contracts

Fees receivable from investment contracts (included in “other technical Income”) and investment
income and interest payable on contract balances are recognised in the Profit and Loss Account
In the year they are accrued, unless they relate to services to be provided in future years, in which
case they are deferred and recognised as the service 1s provided

Claims

Claims paid relate to insurance and participating investment contracts Death claims are
recogmsed on the basis of notifications receved Maturities and annuity payments are
recognised when due for payment Surrenders are accounted for at the earlier of the date when
paid or when the policy ceases to be included within the long term business provision or the
technical provision for inked kabiities ~ Claims payable include the related internal and external
claims handling costs  Full provision 1s made for the estimated cost of claims notified but not
settled at the balance sheet date and for claims incurred but not reported

Reinsurance

Long-term business 1s ceded to reinsurers under contracts to transfer out part or all of the
following nisks mortalty, morbidity, investment, persistency and expenses Such contracts are
accounted for as insurance contracts provided the nisk transfer 1s significant

The amounts that will be recoverable from reinsurers are estmated based upon the gross
provisions, having due regard to collectabilty The recoverability of reinsurance recovenes 1s
assessed having regard to market data on the financial strength of each of the reinsurance
companies The remsurers’ share of claims incurred, in the profit and loss account, reflects the
amounts received or recewvable from reinsurers in respect of those claims incurred during the
pernod Reinsurance liabilties are pnmarnly premiums payable for reinsurance contracts and are
recognised in the profit and loss account as ‘Outwards reinsurance premiums’ when due

Investment return

Investment income and expenses include dividends, tnterest, rents, gains and losses on the
realisation of investments, interest payable on financtal labilties camed at amortised cost using
the effective interest method and related expenses Dividends are inciuded as investment income
on the date that shares become quoted ex-dividend and nterest, rents and expenses are ncluded
on an accruals basis Dividends are shown net of tax credits or overseas taxation where these
are Irrecoverable

Realised gains and losses on investments carried at farr value are calculated as the difference
between net sale proceeds and the purchase price  Movements in unrealised gains and losses
on investments represent the difference between the value at the balance sheet date and onginal
cost, or, If assets have previously been revalued, the value at the previous balance sheet date,
together with the reversal of unreahsed gamns and losses previously recogrised on asset
disposals in the pertod  All gains and losses are reported in the technical account

Investments
Investments in group undertakings

Investments in group undertakings are included at current value In the Society's balance sheet
and any changes are taken through the profit and loss account
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Land and buildings

Land and buildings are valued at open market value based on the RICS valuation and certificate
basis Full valuations are made by independent professionally qualified valuers annually and
duning times of market volatility are reviewed at the balance sheet date Unrealised gains and
losses arising on the revaluation of properties are taken to the techrnical account

In accordance with SSAP 18 no depreciation or amortisation is provided in respect of the freehold
investment properties The requirement of the Companies Act 2006 1s to depreciate all
properties This requirement conflicts with the generally accepted accounting principle set out in
SSAP 19 The directors consider that, as these properties were held for investment, to depreciate
them would not give a true and far view, and that it 1s necessary to adopt SSAP 19 1 order to
give a true and fair view Depreciafion 1s only one of the many factors reflected in the annual

valuation and the amount which might otherwise have been shown cannot be separately identified
or quantified

Other financial investments
The Group classifies its financial assets into the following categories

« Shares and other vanable yield secunties and units in unit trusts — at fair value through
profit and loss,
Dervatives — at fair value through profit and loss,
* Debi secunties and other fixed income securities - at fair value through profit and loss,
* Loans and receivables

Management determines the classification of its Investments at initral recognition

a} Shares and other variable yield securities and units in unit trusts, debt securities and
other fixed income securities.

Financral assets are classified into this category at incephion if they are acquired with the view that
they are capabile of being soid in the future prior to maturnity or if so designated by management to
minimise any measurement or recognition inconsistency with the associated habilities

Financial assets designated as at farr value through profit and loss are those that are managed
and whose performance 1s evaluated on a fair value basis Information about these financial
assets 15 provided internally on a farr value basis to management The Group's investment
strategy 1s 1o investin listed equity secunties and fixed interest rate debt secunbies and denvatives
designated upon inibial recognition at fair value through profit and loss

Fair value for listed and other hsted investments in fixed interest holdings 1s the id price
excluding accrued income  Unit trust and OEIC holdings are valued at bid price  Assets held to
cover the technical proviston for linked liabilities are valued at bid pnice

b) Derivative Financial Instruments

Derivatives are mtially recognised at fair value on the date on which a denvative contract 1s
entered into and are subsequently re-measured at therr fair value  Changes in the farr value are
recogmised immeadiatsly in the Profit and Loss Account Fair values are obtained from quoted
market prices m active markets, including recent market transactions and valuation techniques,
such as discounted cash flow models and options pricing models, as appropriate  All derivatives

are carned as assets when the farr value 1s positive and as liabilities when the farr value 1s
negative

The best evidence of the fair value of a derivative at mitial recogrution is the transaction price (1 e
the fair value of the consideration given or received) uniess the fair value of that instrument is
evidenced by comparison with other observable current market transactions in the same

instrument (1 e without modification or repackaging) or based on a valuation technique whose
vanables mclude only data from observable markets

Embedded denvatives that are not closely related to their host contracts and meet the definition of
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a denvative are separated and fair valued through the profit and loss account

¢) Loans and Receivables

Loans and recewvables are initially recognised at the fair value of the consideration paid including
transachion costs that are directly atinbutable to the acquisition or issue of the financial asset
Subsequently they are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method

The directors believe that the carrying value of the investments Is supported by their undertying
net assets

Tangible assets and depreciation

Tangible assets are capitalised and depreciated to their recoverable value over their useful
economic hives on the following basis

Computer Hardware and Software 33 1/3% per annum on a straight line basis
Office Equipment 25% per annum on a straight ine basis

Full depreciation 15 charged in the year of acquisition and no depreciation in the year of disposal
Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at each balance sheet date whether there I1s objective evidence that a
financial asset or group of financial assets not at fair value through profit and loss 1s impaired A
financial asset ar group of financial assets 1s impawed and impawment losses are incurred only If
there 1s objective evidence of imparrment as a result of one or more events that have occurred
after the imbial recognition of the asset {a ‘loss event’) and that loss event (or events) has an
impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or group of financial assets that
can be rehably estimated Objective evidence that a financial asset or group of assets 1s Impaired
Includes observable data that comes to the attention of the Group about the following events

1 significant financial difficulty of the 1ssuer or debtor,

2 a breach of contract, such as a default of delinquency in payments,

3 it becorming probable that the 1ssuer or debtor will enter bankruptcy or other financial
recrganisation,

4 the disappearance of an active market for that financial asset because of financial
difficulties, or

5 cbservable data indicating that there 1s a measurable decrease in the estimated future

cash flow from a group of financial assets since the initial recognition of those assets,
although the decrease cannot yet be identified with the individual financial assets in the
group, mcluding

a adverse changes in the payment status of 1ssuers or debtors in the group, or
b national or local economic conditions that correlate with defauits on the assets in
the group

The Group first assesses whether objective evidence of impairment exists individually for financial
assets that are individually significant  f the Group determines that no objective evidence of
impairment exists for an individually assessed financial asset, whether significant or not, it
includes the asset in a group of financial assets with similar credit nsk charactenstics and
collectively assesses them for impairment Assets that are individually assessed for impairment
and for which an imparment loss 1s or continues to be recognised are not included in a collective
assessment of impairment

If there 1s objective evidence that an impairment loss has been mcurred on loans and recewvables
carried at amortised cost, the amount of the loss 1s measured as the difference between the
asset's carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future
credit losses that have been incurred) discounted at the financial asset's onginal effective interest
rate The carrying amount of the asset is reduced and the amount ofthe loss 1s recognised in the
Profit and Loss Account for the period  If a loan has a vanable interest rate, the discount rate for
measunng any impairment loss I1s the current effective interest rate determined under the
contract As a practical expedient, the Group may measure imparment on the basis of an
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Instrument’s fair value using an observable market price

For the purpose of a collective evaluation of impairment, financial assets are grouped on the basis
of similar credit nsk characteristics (1e on the basis of the Group's grading process that
considers asset type, industry, geographical location, past-due status and other relevant factors)
Those charactenstics are relevant to the estimation of future cash flows for groups of such assets
by being indicative of the issuer's ability to pay all amounts due under the contractual terms of the
debt instrument being evatuated

If In a subsequent period, the amount of the iImpairment loss decreases and the decrease can be
related objectively to an event occurning after the impairment was recognised (such as improved
credit rabing), the previcusly recognised impairment loss 1s reversed through the Profitand Loss
Account for the penod

Long term business provision

The long-term business provision s determined on the basis of recognised actuarial methods and
cansistently with the FSA Rules (specifically those applying to the calculation of mathematical
reserves contained in Chapter 1 2 of the Insurance Prudential Sourcebook) and the Association of
British Insurers Statement of Recommended Practice on Accounting for Insurance Business
{December 2005 revised December 2008) In determining the long-term business provision all
relevant gudance from the Board of Actuanal Standards, and i particular Guidance Notes 7 and
44, has been followed

Full detauls of the methods, assumptions and sensitvihies are given i note 18

The long-term provision includes the non-unit habilittes in respect of unit-inked insurance
contracts

Technical provisions for linked liabilities

Liabiiiies under umt-inked contracts are recogmised as and when the umis are created and are
dependent on the value of the underlying financial assets, denvatives and/or investment property

Unit-linked cantracts which transfer sigruficant insurance risk, including guaranteed benefits, are
classified as insurance contracts and are carried in the balance sheet at an amount determined
by the vaiuation of the related units on the valuation date

Unit-hinked contracts which principally involve the transfer of financial nsk are classified as
investment contracts and are carried in the balance sheet at amortised cost The amortised cost
of these financial habilities 1s equivalent to the amount payable on demand without penalty

Deferred acquisition costs

Deferred acquisition costs for insurance contracts are assessed by taking account of the costs
incurred In the sale of existing contracts and the potential for recovery of those costs out of
marg:ns avallable over the remaimng life of the policies concerned No acquisition costs are
deferred In respect of single premium contracts The rate of amortisation 1s consistent with the
pattern of emergence of such margins

Fund for future appropnations

The fund for future appropriations represents all funds, the allocation of which to policyholders has
not yet been determined by the end of the financial year Any unappropriated surplus or deficit
ansing on the technical account 1s transferred to or from the fund on an annual basis

Taxation

Tax 1s charged or credited on all taxable profits or losses ansing for the accounting penod The
taxation charge or credit 1s based on a method of assessing taxation for the long-term fund
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Deferred taxation

Provision 1s made for deferred tax habilities, using the hability method, on afi matenal tming
differences, including revaluation gains and losses on mvestments recognised in the Profit and
Loss Account Deferred taxis calculated at the rates at which it 1s expected that the tax will arise
and discounted to take into account the likely timing of payments and the pattern of the expected
reahsation of investments Deferred tax balances are similarly discounted The discount rates
used are the post-tax yields to maturity that could be obtained at the balance sheet date on
government bonds with similar maturity dates Deferred tax i1s recogrused n the profit and loss
account for the period Deferred tax in respect of unrealised gains on assets held to cover inked
habilities 1s included within assets held to cover linked habilittes

A deferred tax asset Is not recognised where there 1s no certainty of sufficient future profits and
gans ansing aganst which losses giving nise to the deferred tax assets can be offset

Operating leases

Payments made under operating leases are charged on a straight line basis over the term of the
lease

Foreign currencies

Assets and habilites held in foreign currencies are translated to sterling at rates of exchange
ruling at the end of the year Income and expenditure denominated in foreign currencies are
translated at the appropriate rates prevailing during the year

Pension Costs

The Society operates a defined benefit pension scheme which closed to future accrual for ali but
two members, on 30 June 2010 The defined benefit pension scheme 1s reported using the
provisions of FRS 17 Included on the balance sheet s the aggregate pension scheme’s assets
less the present value of the scheme’s habilities, net of a prowvision for deferred tax

The pension cost for the scheme 1s analysed between current service cost, past service cost and
net return on pension scheme Current service cost is the actuanally calculated present value of
the benefits earmned by the active employees In each perod Past service costs, relating to
employee service In prior periods ansing in the current period as a result of the introduction of, or
Improvement to, retirement benefits, are recognised in the Profit and Loss Account an a straght-
Ine basis over the penod in which the increase in benefits vest

Net expected return on the pension asset comprises the expected return on the pension scheme
assets less interest on scheme habilities

The standard requires certain items to be accounted for through the “Statement of Total
Recognised Gains and Losses” which, neither the Group nor Society prepare due to their mutual
status [nstead, these items are shown separately in the Profit and Loss Account

Since 1 July 2010 the Soctety has operated a defined contribution scheme  Payments into this
scheme are accounted for when due The assets of the scheme are held separately from the
Group and Society in independently administered funds

Goodwill

Goodwilll, both positive and negative, arising on consolidation 1s capitalised in the balance sheet at
cost and amortised through the Profit and Loss Account over its useful economic life

Present Value of Acquired In-force Business

On acquisition of a portfolio of long-term insurance contracts, directly or through the acquisition of
a subsidiary undertaking, the net present value of the expected after-tax cash-flows of the in-force
business is capitalised In the balance sheet as an asset The asset s amortised and the discount
unwaund on a systematic basis n proportion fo the surplus emerging from the related contracts
over their expected future life, which the directors have determined to be 20 years on average
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1b.

The carrying value of the asset 1s assessed annually using current assumptions in order to
determine whether any Impairment has ansen compared to the amortised acquired value based
on assumptions made at the time of the acquisttion Any amortisation or impairment charge I1s
recorded in the long-term business technical account in “other technical charges”

Provisions

A provision Is recognised in the balance sheet when there is a legal or constructive obligation as a

result of a past event and it 1s probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to
seftle the obligation

Uncertainties

There are a number of nsks and uncertainties that could have a matenal impact on the Society
and Group’s future performance Our views of these principal risks and uncertainties and the
framework used within the Group to manage them is discussed i the Directors Report on page
8 The exposure of the Society and Group to changes in equity prices, credit default rates and
interest rates are detailed in note 2 It should however be noted that each of these sensitivities 15
caiculated independently of the others and that it 1s nappropnate to assume these are additive
The Board has carefully considered the impact of these uncertainties by reference to plausible
economic scenaros and believes that after taking into account management actions which would
be taken to mitigate the impact, adequate capital resources would be maintained
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Management of financial nsk
Outline of Fund Structure

As the Society 1s a mutual company the financial nsks are borne by the Society’'s members, and in
particular with profits policyholders

Prior to the Credrtors Scheme of Arrangement, which was effective on 1 August 2012, the Society
compnsed six with profits funds These were known as RM With Profits Sub Fund (RM WPSF),
With Profits Sub Fund 2 (WPSF2), WPSF3, WPSF4, WPSF5 and WPSF6

WPSF2 to WPSF6 were created following various schemes of transfer of business into the
Society

Since 1 August 2012, RM WPSF no longer exists At the Scheme’s effective date, the assets and
Iiabikties of the fund were split into two new funds, the Ordinary Sub Fund (OSF) and WPSF1

Unit linked business 1s primarily held in OSF (previously RM WPSF) with a small element in
WPSF5 For unit inked contracts the Group matches all the labilities with assets in the portfolio
on which the unit prices are based There Is therefore no direct exposure to market or credit risk
for the with profits policyholders on these contracts This is considered further below

The financial risks discussed below therefore represent the nsk only to with profits policyholders in
the Group, which would resuit in a nsk to the fund for future appropnations (FFA)

Financial Risk

The Group 1s exposed to a range of financial risks through #ts financial assets, financial habilities,
reinsurance assets and policyholder abiities In particular, the key financial nsk is that the
proceeds from financial assets are not sufficient to fund the obligations ansing from nsurance
policies and investment contracts {together referred to as “labthties to policyholders”) as they fall
due The most important components of this financial risk are market nsk, credit nsk and hquidity
nsk In addition, further risks anse from the difference between estmated and actual cost of
future insurance and investment contract habiities, which are covered in more detail in note 18

These financial nsks anse from open positions in interest rate, currency and equity products, all of
which are exposed to general and specific market movements The main risks that the Group
faces due to the nature of its financial assets and liabilities, are interest rate nsk and equity price
nsk (as components of market nsk) and credit risk

The Group’s overall nsk management policy seeks to manage the effects of financial nsks
Investment guidelines have been established by the Investment Committee to control exposure to
both market and credit nsk

The role of the Investment Commitiee Is to approve investment strategy, monitor the Group's
investment management function and ensure group-wide comphance with the procedures set out
in the Fund Management Procedures Manual and all legal and regulatory requirements

This encompasses

1) Approving the Investment strategy Any significant changes will be referred to the Board for
its approval

2) Monitoring the methodology and rationale behind all deals that are executed and asset
allocation decisions that are taken, including the review of cross trades completed to ensure
that the interests of investors in all funds Involved have been appropniately considered

3) Rewviewing all aspects of the Group’s fund management procedures, e g dealing authorities,
aliocation policy, investment guidelines, investment related sk policies and authonsed
brokers

4} Being aware of the habiliies against which the assets are held and taking account of their
nature and term when considering investment decisions

5) Monitoring the fund managers' measures to satisfy the FSA’'s Training and Competence
requirements In respect of investment management staff
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6} Ensunng at all imes that the Investment Department has sufficient resources to discharge its
responstbilities to both policyholders and unit holders and to comply with any regulations that
govern the Investment Department's activities

7) General input on comphance, stock selection and asset allocation

All Investment Committee minutes are presented to the Board

A principal fechmgue used by the tnvestment Commitiee 1s to ensure that assets are matched 1o
the habiities ansing from insurance contracts by reference to the type of benefits payable to
policyholders Within OSF, separate portfolios of assets are maintained for annuities, each unit-
inked fund, guaranteed income bonds and other contracts  Each of the sub funds WPSF1 o
WPSFB6 has its own separately identified assets which are managed to match the obligations of
the insurance and Investment contracts in those sub funds

As part of the acquisition of the business of Hearts of Qak Insurance Company Limited in 2007,
the Group started to use interest rate swaptions to hedge interest rate and equity market nsks
associated with guaranteed annuity rate options on certain policies that were acquired with the
transfer of that business The Group does not use hedge accounting

The suitability of thus dernivative i1s reviewed at least annually by the Investment Committee The
maxtmum potential financial exposure 1s reduced by the holding of a collateral account which 1s
rebalanced daily subject to a transfer threshold Detalls of the collateral account and value of the
options are received by the Investment Manager, Chief Actuary and Financial Controller daily

The Group has not changed its processes for managing nsks from previous periods
a) Market Risk

Market nsk anses from the possibity that the value or cash flows of the Group's assets and
habilbes fluctuate as a result of the movements in market pnces The most /mportant
components of market nsk are interest rate, currency, equity price and property price risk

These are discussed in more detal below
I} Interest rate nsk

Interest rate nisk anses primanly from investments in fixed interest secunties  In addition to the
extent that claims costs are related to interest rates, iabilities to policyholders are exposed to
interest rate nsk  Likewise, insurance and non-profit investment contracts have benefit payments
that are fixed and guaranteed at the inception of the contract

Fixed interest securities are held which to a significant extent match the expected Irability cashflow
on non-profit annuities, which are the major portion of non-profit business, and as such the
interest rate nsk ansing from non-profit business Is relatively small The matching of these assets
to Irabilities 15 reviewed half yearly by the investment committee considerning the cashflow profile of
habiiles and assets

With profits business has a much broader matching of assets to liabihties than that adopted for
non profit annuities  The investment comrmittee reviews the investments held annvally and
decides on changes that should be made to the portfolilo There 1s therefore some exposure to
interest rate nsk on this business aithough as the policies contain discretionary benefits,
management actions, through bonus declaration mechamisms, could be taken to imitgate the nsk

Interest rate nsk in relation to guaranteed annuity reserves differs depending on the sub fund
wvolved The largest lablittes relate to business in OSF and WPSF8 which 1s protected to a
certain level by a portfolio of interest rate swaptions This level of protection 1s not perfect and
some residual risk on guaranteed annuity reserves remains

Guaranteed annuity reserves in other with profits funds have no specific protection other than the
level of prudence in the long term business provision if this did not suffice, management actions,
through bonus declarations, would be taken to protect the fund concerned

Anncrease of 20% in interest rates would decrease the value of the iong term business provision
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by £66 2m (2011 £60 9m), financial Investments would also decrease in value by £65 7m (2011
£70 1m) resutting 1n a decrease in the FFA of £9 6m (2011 decrease of £9 1m)

A decrease of 20% n interest rates would increase the value of the jong term business proviston
by £61 5m (2011 £69 5m), financial investments would also increase in value by £78 0m (2011
£84 9m) resulting in an increase in the FFA of £16 5m (2011 ncrease of £15 4m)

/)] Currency nisk

The Group operates mainly In the UK, although there 1s a small level of hability exposure to
Continental Europe through credit life business

Where llabilities are in a currency other than sterling, the Group's policy 1s to ensure assets are
held to cover the hability in this foreign currency

Foreign currency risk 1s largely in relaton to movements on individual Instruments within the
nvestment portfolio that are denominated or payable in currencies other than sterling  Investment
guidelines only allow non sterling investments to be held in two specific with profits funds and imit
the amount that may be held

The impact of a 5% weakening/strengthening of the pound against the Euro or US dollar would
not be matenal at 31 December 2012 or 2011

i) Equily Price

The Group's non-linked exposure to equities primarily relates to holdings in the with profits sub
funds In addition the with profits policyholders benefit from the excess of charges levied less
expenses Incurred in the unit linked business As the charges are primarily expressed as a
percentage of the value of the funds under management, changes in equity values influence this
source of surplus

Exposures to individual companies are monitored in order to ensure complance with relevant
regulatory imits for solvency purposes Investments held are histed and traded on the UK and
other recognised stock exchanges (prnimarily in Europe, North America and the Pacific Basin)
The Group has a defined investment policy which sets out imits on the Group’s concentration of
exposure to equities in any one counterparty  Counterparty exposures are monitored quarterly by
the Investment Committee

The impact of equity price falls in the with profits funds would be to reduce the value of with profits
policies via asset shares The PPFM provides the mechanism for automatic management actions
to adjust bonus rates (see page 20)

An increase of 10% in equity prices and an increase of 20% In property prices would increase the
value of the long term business provision by £0 6m (2011 £0 Om), financial investments would
also increase in value by £6 Om (2011 £4 6m) resulting in an increase in the FFA of £4 4m (2011
£4 6m)

A decrease of 10% n equity prices and a decrease of 20% in property prices would decrease the
value of the long term business provision by £0 5m (2011 £0 1m) and decrease the values of
financial assets by £5 Om (2011 £3 9m) resulting in a decrease in the FFA of £4 5m (2011
£4 8m)

v} Property Price nisk

The Group 1s exposed to investment property value fluctuations in OSF and WPSF6 The am of
the Group I1s not to directly hold property, except owner occupied property, as part of its
investment portfolio and these holdings will be sold as and when a sutable opportunity arises

b) Credit risk

Credit nsk is the risk that a counterparty will be unable to pay amounts in full when due The key
area where the Group 1s exposed 1s in relation to its investment portfolio and from its holdings n
bonds and cash in particular Other areas of nisk are reinsurance balances due, rent receivable
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and amounts due from policyholders

The investment guidelines for non-linked assets stipulate counterparty imits for equities, umnit
trusts or recognised schemes and any one corporate counterparty  The maximum amount to be
held in any particular corporate bond issue 1s also specified The exposure to counterparties 1s
reported to the Investment Committee every quarter

Un-rated debt secunties are considered on an individual basis by the investment committee
Relevant financial information 1s reviewed annually by the investment committee on a roling
programme

The main matenal reinsurance contracts relate to smoker and enhanced smoker annuities where
the longevity nsk 1s 75% reinsured The reinsurance operates on a reverse risk premium basis
where the Society pays expected annuity payments and the reinsurers pay actual annuity
payments Therefore the loss arising from the reinsurer defauiting i1s imited to the net balances
due This nsk was reduced by splitting the reinsurance of smoker annuities between fwo
providers from 1 January 2008 Enhanced Smoker Annuihies wnitten from Apnl 2012 are reinsured
by one provider only A new matertal remsurance contract was entered into duning the year which
reinsures the hability for other annuities in payment This also operates on a reverse nsk
premium basis therefore imiting the loss ansing from the reinsurer defaulting This 1s further to
an existing reinsurance contract for other annuities in payment [n this latter case the reinsurer
deposits an amount of collateral with the Society that hmits credit nsk

The assets bearing credit risk are summarised below, together with an analysis by credt rating

2012 2011
£000 £000
Non-linked assets subject to credit risk
Sovereign Debt 188,259 214,356
AAA 35,773 37,389
AA 173,706 158,841
A 337,848 308,040
BAA 12,179
BBB and below or not rated 263,286 210,219
Total assets bearng credit nsk 1,011,051 928,845
Dervatives financial instruments 15,859 17,509
Debt securities 898,605 841,394
L.oans & Receivables 5,138 5,311
Assets arising from remsurance contracts held 55,560 33,678
Deposits with credit inshtutions 35,889 30,953
Total assets bearing credit nisk 1,011,051 928,845

For the purpose of demoenstrating the Society's exposure {o credit risk, reinsurance has been
inciuded with those non-linked assets with a credit rating AA or A This was considered
appropnate in light of the reinsurer's credit rating

Sovereign debt relates to UK and overseas government issued debt or debt issued by
supranational authonties such as the European Investment Bank

No financial assets are past due or impaired at the reporting date

The Society increased the credit default margins in the valuation basis used to determine
policyholder labilities as at 31 December 2012 (see note 18) The impact can be seen In the
movement In capital resources in note 21 {c)

A further increase of 33% in credit default margins would increase liabilities and decrease the
FFA by £22 9m (2011 £23 4m)
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A decrease of 33% in credit default margins would decrease liabilittes and increase the FFA by
£219m (2011 £22 7m)

To restrict the loss that would be incurred by the failure of another party to fulfil its obligations
under the dernvative contract, a collateral account 1s held The account 1s maintained at £10m
below the value of the options with a transfer threshold of £0 5m The account 1s assessed on
close of day values and rebalanced the next day subject to the threshold limit

As there is no significant difference between the credit nisk profile of the Society and the Group no
separate table has been prepared for the Society only position

c) Liquidity risk

Liquidity nsk 1s the nsk that cash may not be avaiiable at a reasonable cost to pay obligations
when due This is managed by weekly cash forecasts and also by holding sufficient cash and
other assets in Investments which are readily marketable in a sufficiently short timeframe to be
able to settle benefits as they fall due

Apart from a small number of investment contracts with financial habiities of less than £0 5m
(2011 £0 6mj, all policies include the nght to surrender or transfer the poiicy on demand, with the
surrender or transfer value calculation method being determined by the policy conditions The
majonty of the contracts are unit inked, where the liabilities are matched by assets held in internal
linked funds All inked assets are readily marketable except for direct properties held in the
property funds In the property funds, the Society has the nght to defer payment of surrender or
transfer values by up to six months  This nght was not exercised at any time in the current or
pricr year

The investment contracts that are not unit linked have a maximum outstanding duration of five
years and are backed by fixed term depostts or short dated fixed interest secunties matching the
outstanding duration The Society 1s exposed to requests for early surrender of such polices
when the backing assets are illiquid  The maximum exposure, were all contracts to surrender at
the balance sheet date 1s £9 1m (2011 £9 6m)

The table below provides a matunty analysis of the Group's financial labilities  These are on an
undiscounted cashflow basis and therefore do not equal the habilities shown in the bafance sheet

On Othersup Between >5years Total
demand to1year 1and5
years
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
At 31 December 2012
Financial iabilties under nen-
profit nvestment contracts 445,450 214 ) - 445,664
Creditors 6,035 5,187 3,414 9,221 23,857
E(l)rznmal habilties at amortised 451,485 5401 3414 9,221 469,521
Financial hiabilities under with
profits investment contracts
included in long term business 10,387 ) i i 10,387
proviston
461,872 5401 3,414 9,221 479,908
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Financral liabilittes under with profits investment contracts are accounted for as insurance
contracts in hne with the AB! SORP

e

On Othersup Between >5years Total
demand to 1 year 1and 5
years
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
At 31 December 2011
Financial labilities under non-
profit investment contracts 425,694 228 ) - 425022
Creditors 7,640 4 945 3,587 9,676 25848
E(l)nsetmmal habilities at amortised 433,334 5,173 3,587 9,676 451770
Financial kabihties under with
profits investment contracts
included  long term business 1,140 B ) ) 11,140
provision
444 474 5,173 3,587 9676 462 910

As there is no significant difference between the maturity profile of the Society and the Group no
separate table has been prepared for the Society only position

d) Fair value estimation

FRS 28 requires, for financial instruments held at fair vaiue in the balance sheet, disclosure of fair
value measurements by level of the following fair value measurement hierarchy

+ Quoted prices {unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or habitties (Level 1)

+ |nputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or
kability, either directly (that 1s, as prices) or indirectly {that 15, derved from pnces) (Level 2)

+ Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (that 1s,
unobservable inputs} (Level 3)

The following table presents the Group’s assets and liabiities measured at fair value at 31

December 2012
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Balance
£m £m fm £m
Assets
Financial assets at far value through profitor
loss
- shares and other varable-yeld
securtties and unmits in umt trusts 527 235 ) 762
- debt secunties and other fixed
Income securities 1860 7126 B 8986
- derivative financial investments - - 159 159
2387 736 1 159 9907
Financial assets held to cover Iinked
Labilities 3590 2780 - 6370
5977 1,014 1 159 16277
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The following table presents the Group's assets and habihties measured at fawr value at 31
December 2011

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Balance
£m £m £m £m
Assets
Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss
- shares and other vanable-yield _
secunties and units in unit trusts 574 162 738
- debt secuntes and other fixed
INcome securities 2092 6322 . 8414
- derivative financial investments - - 17 8 17 5
2666 648 4 175 9325
Financial assets held to cover linked 3744 2481 - 6225
habilities
6410 896 5 17 5 1555 0

In addition to the £637 Om (2011 £622 5m) of financial assets held to cover linked habilities a
further £24 4m (2011 £22 3m) of non financial assets and liabilihes are also held to cover linked
labiities These assets and liabilities do not fall within the scope of FRS29 and are therefore not
tncluded in the hierarchy

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets 1s based on quoted bid prices at
the balance sheet date, as described In note 1 These instruments are included in Level 1

Instruments imcluded in Level 1 comprise primanly listed equity and debt instruments

The Group closely monitors the valuation of assets 1n markets that have become less liquid
Determining whether a market 1s active requires the exercise of judgement and Is determined
based upon the facts and circumstances of the market for the nstrument being measured
Where it 1s determined that there 1s no active market, farr value 1s established using a valuation
technique The techmiques applied Incorporate relevant information available and reflect
appropriate adjustments for credit and hquidity nsks These valuation techniques maximise the
use of observable market data where 1t 1s available and rely as little as possible on entity specific
estimates The relative weightings given to differing sources of information and the determination
of non-observable inputs to valuation models can require the exercise of significant judgement

If alt significant inputs required to far value an instrument are observable, the instrument 1s
included in Level 2 If one or more of the significant inputs 1s not based on observable market
data, the mnstrument 1s included in Level 3

Specific valuation techniques used to value financial instruments include

» The use of observable prices for recent arm’s length transactions

* Quoted market prices or dealer quotes for similar instruments  In particular, for corporate

bonds for which there 1s no active market the fair value 1s based on broker/dealer price
quotattons  Where this information 1s not avallable or where It 15 considered to be not
representative of fair value, fair value has been estimated using quoted market prices for
secunties with similar credit, matunty and yield characteristics
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The following table presents the changes mn Level 3 mstruments for the year ended 31 December
2012

Derivatives
£m

Opening balance 175
Gains and losses recognised in the profit or loss (1.8)

Closing balance 159

Total gains or losses for the period included in profit or loss 17
for assets held at the end of the reporting penod

3 Segmental analysis

In the opinion of the directors, the Group operates in a single business segment, being that of
long term insurance bustness

a) Gross Premiums Written
All premiums relate solely to long-term insurance contracts

2012 2011
£000 £000
Gross premiums written comprnse

Direct insurance 60,746 42 822

and with profits investment contracts
Periodic premiums 6,179 7,047

Single premiums 54,567 35,775

60,746 42,822

Life insurance contracts 5,600 6,881

Pensions 55,076 35,861
Sickness and disability contracts 70 80

60,746 42,822

Unit inked insurance contracts 4,444 5,300
Non hnked contracts 56,302 37,522

80,746 42,822

Geographical analysis

United Kingdom 60,732 42 812
Germany (n 4
Finland 15 17
Italy - (3)

60,746 42,822

Gross premiums written ansing from group contracts are immatenal, therefore all premiums are
deemed to anse from individual business Negative premiums represent refunds

In addition to the premiums disclosed above in relation to insurance contracts and investment
confracts with dpf, the following premiums were receved in relaticn to investment contracts
These are accounted for using deposit accounting as additions to investment contract habihities in
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the batance sheet {see note 20) rather than as premiums n the long term technical account

2012 2011
£000 £000

Unit inked investment contracts
Life 112 157
Pensions g,228 9,576
9,340 9,733

There were no premiums on non linked investment contracts
b) New Business Figures
No matenal amounts of business were remsured other than on a nisk premium basis No new

Inwards reinsurance was accepted  New business premiums for insurance contracts and
Investment with dpf contracts comprise

2012 2011
£000 £000
Periodic premiums 32 54
Single premiums 54,567 35,775
54,599 35,829
Life insurance contracts {77) 474
Pension contracts 54676 35,355
54,599 35,829
Unit hinked insurance contracts - 66
Non linked contracts 54,599 35,763
54 599 35,829

Geographicat analysis
United Kingdom 54,600 35,836
Germany (1) (4)
[taly - (3)
54,599 35,829

In classifying new business premiums the following bases of recognition have been adopted

» Recurrent single premium contracts, including DWP rebates on certam pension products
are included as new business, single premiums,

¢ Pensions vested into annuity contracts during the year are included as new annuity single
premum business at the annuity purchase price,

¢ Where regular premiums are received cther than annually, the reported regular new
business premiums are on an annuahsed basis,

*» Negative prermums represent refunds
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New business In relation to investment contracts comprise

2012 2011
£000 £000

Unit inked investment contracts
Pensions — single premiums 5,855 5,992

¢} Rensurance Balance

The remnsurance balance amounted to a credit to the long term business technical account at 31
December 2012 of £22 442m (2011 credit of £2 729m)
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Investment Return

Investment income:

Income from other financial investments
- Loans and recewvables interest income

Total interest income on financial assets not at fair value
through profit or loss

Income from financial assets at far value through profit or
loss

Income from land and buildings

Net return on penston scheme {note 27)
Net gains on the realisation of Investments

Investment expenses and charges.
Investment management expenses

Total investment management expenses

Net unrealised gains/{losses) on investments

Total investment return

Included in the total investment return are net gains or
losses on financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

- Assets designated upon imtial recognition
- Assets held for trading

Total net realised and unrealised gains/(losses)
included n investment return

Interest {Income}/expense for financial habilittes not at fair value
through profit and loss comprises

- Interest (income)/expense in respect of unit linked Investment
contracts

Interest in respect of financial labilities at amortised cost
- Interest expense n respect of with profits investment contracts

Total interest (Income)/expense for financial habilittes not at
fair value through profit and loss

2012 2011
£000 £000
151 110

151 110
68,935 63,886
69,086 63,996
218 245

40 116
22,646 9,540
91,990 73,897
(1,319) (1,358)
(1,319) (1,358)
68,389 (35,629)
159,060 36,910
91,659 (34,616)
(624) 8,527
91,035 (26,089)
(31,104) (47,301)
(31,104) (47,301)
12 1,610
(31,092) (45,691)

interest (iIncome)/expense relating to financial habihties at amortised cost In respect of unit inked
mnvestment contracts 1s included in the Technical account —long-term business under the heading

“change n other technical provisions” See note 20

The interest expense in respect of with profits contracts 1s calculated as the increase in the liability
for those contracts not attnbutable to amounts recewved from, or paid to, policyholders and 1s
included in the Technical account — long-term business under the heading “Change in other

technicai provisions”
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5 Other Technical Income and Charges

Other technical ncome includes fees for policy administration and asset management services
ansing from non-participating investment contracts and relates to financial habilities carned at

amortised cost

Also included in other technical income and charges are the profits or losses after taxation of The
Reliance Fire & Accident Insurance Corporation Limited, Rellance Administration Services

Limited, FS Management Limited and Reliance Unit Managers Limited, which do not carry on

long-term business

Other technical charges also include the amortisation charged in the year on the present value of

acquired n-force business

2012 201
£000 £000

a)  Other technical income
Fee iIncome from investment contracts 3,368 3,429
Rehance Unit Managers Limnited 342 312
Reliance Admunustration Services Limited 57 60
3,768 3,801

b) Dther technical charges
The Reliance Fire & Accident Insurance Corporation Limited 24 22
FS Management Limited 13 9
Amaortisation of present value of acquired in-force business 275 316
312 347

The results for The Rellance Fwe & Accident Insurance Corporation Limited include the

movement in the prowision for outstanding claims in respect of that company

6 Bonuses

The aggregate of the bonuses added to policies In the year was £10 341m {2011 £9 487m)

Net Operating Expenses

2012 2011

£000 £000

Acquisition costs 2,098 2,335
Change n deferred acquisition costs 62 77
Administrative expenses 6,473 6,148
Reinsurance commissions 124 53
8,757 8613

Total commission for direct Insurance accounted for by the Group during the year amounted to

-£0 02m (2011 £0 938m)
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22
£000
Included withun the admunistration expenses are
Audit services:
Fees payable to PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP for audit of the 288
parent company's consolhdated annual accounts
Under/{over) provision for previous year 17
Non-audit services.
Fees payable {o PncewaterhouseCoopers LLP and #s associates
for other services
The audit of the company's subsidianes, pursuant to legislation 38
Other services pursuvant to legisiation, including the audit of the
requlatory return 51
Other services — Accountancy advisory -
394
Fees payable to PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP in respect of
Reliance Pension Scheme
Audit 6
Audit fees shown are net of VAT but the cost to the company s
gross
In 2012 and 2011 the Society settled the audit fees for the whole
Group, an allocation was then made to substdiary companies
Deprecration of tangible assets 273
Operating lease rentals — land and buildings 118
Operating lease rentals receivable - land and buildings (72)

2011
£000

268
(5)

36

49
35

383

396
130
(70)

In addition to the lease rentals paid £46k (2011 nil) was incurred surrendenng the lease on a

closed office branch

Investment Expenses and Charges

2012
£000

Investment Expenses 1,319

49

2011
£000
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10

Employee information

The average monthly number of persons (including the executive director) employed by the Group

during the year was

Management
Administration

Staff costs for the above totalled

Wages and Salares

Social Security costs
Other Pension costs

- Defined Benefit {note 27)
- Defined Contnbution

Directors’ Emoluments

Total directors' emoluments

Highest paid director (included in above: figures)

2012
No

8
75

83

2012
£000

4,056
504

178
270

5,008

2012
£000

638
349

2011
No

7
69

76

2011
£000

3,400
422

159
232

4,213

2011
£000

540
342

The total accrued pension to the mghest paid director in respect of the Group's defined benefit

pension scheme was £15,134 (2011

£11,819) as at 31 December 2012 The Group and

Society’s contributtons in respect of the defined contribution scheme for the highest paid director
were £22,870 dunng the period (2011 £22,165) See the Remuneration Report on pages 18-19

for more detalled directars’ emoluments
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1

12

13

Taxation

The charge/(credit} to tax in the profit and loss account 1Is made up as follows

UK Corporation Tax at 20% (2011 — 20%)

Adjustments in respect of prior penods
Total current tax

Deferred taxation

within technical provision for inked habilities

FRS17 deferred tax

other deferred taxation ongination and reversal of timing

differences {see note 24)
maovement in discount

Total deferred tax

Tax credit on profit on ordinary activities

2012
£000

1,553
{398)

1,155

(87)
126

2
(15)

26

1,181

2011
£000

(1,003)
{46)

(1,049)

(8)
{424)
9

(420)

(1,469)

UK corporation tax in the technical account has been calculated at rates at 20% (2011 20%) in
accordance with the rates applicable to the long-term business

Fund for Future Appropriations

At 1 January
Transfer from/(to) profit and loss account

At 31 December

Land and Buildings — Group and Society

Freehold

2012 2011

Group  Society Group  Society
£000 £000 £000 £000
85,145 85,174 104,896 104,954
10,654 10,626 (19,751) (19,780)
95,799 95,800 85,145 85,174

2012 2011

£000 £000

3,750 3,785

The cost of land and bulldings was £5 172m (2011 £5 172m)

Land and bulldings have detailed valuations carried out on a rolling program throughout the year
However ali valuations were reviewed as at 31 December 2012

The properties were valued at open market value by chartered surveyors Aitchison Raffety
Valuations were prepared in accordance with RICS guidelines

Included within land and buildings 1s owner occupied property with a value of £2 45m (2011

£2 45m)
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14, Investment in Group Undertakings - Shares

At the balance sheet date the Society held 100% of the Issued share capital (and voting rights) of
the following companies, with the exception of The Rellance Fire & Accident Insurance
Corporation Limited where the Society held 99 99% of the 1ssued share capital and voting nghts

The Reliance Fire & Accident Insurance
Corporatton Limited

Reliance Unit Managers Limited

Rehlance Pension Scheme Trustee Limited

Reliance Admmnistration Services Limited

FS Management Limited

2012 2011

Current Cost Current Cost
Value Value

£000 £000 £000 £000
311 1,000 336 1,000
442 50 412 50
207 100 210 100
62 50 75 50
1,022 1,200 1,033 1,200

Group undertakings have been included at net assetvalue, which 1s current value, in the Society's
balance sheet All of the Group undertakings are included in the consolidation

Details of group undertakings are

The Rehance Fire & Accident Insurance Corporation Limited
Rehance Unmt Managers Limited

Rehance Pension Scheme Trustee Limited

Relrance Administration Services Limited

Incorporated

England & Wales
England & Wales
England & Wales
England & Wales

FS Management Limited England & Wales
15 Other Financial Investments
a) Group Balance Sheet
2012
Market Value Cost
£000 £000
Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss
Destgnated upon initizl recognition 974,808 863,352
Derivative financiat instruments — held for 15,859 6,396

trading

990,667 869,748

l.oans and receivables at amortised

cost 41,027 41,700

Total financial assets 1,031,694 911,448
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Princtpal Activity

General Insurance

Unit Trust management
Trustee

Administration

Administration
2011
Market Value Cost
£000 £000
914,950 845,945
17,509 6,318

932,459 852,263

36,265 36,348

968,724 888,609
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Included n balance sheet as follows

Shares and other variable yeld securities
and units in unit trusts

Debt securtties and other fixed income
secunties

Loans secured by mortgages

Other loans

Deposits with credit mstitutions

Other - Denvative financial instruments

b) Society Balance Sheet

Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss

Designated upon nihal recogniton
Dervative financial instruments - held for
trading

Loans and receivables at amortised cost

Total financial assets

Included in balance sheet as follows

Shares and other vanable yield secunties and
units in unit trusts

Debt secunties and other fixed income
secunties

Loans secured by mortgages

Other loans

Depostts with credit institutions

Other - Denvative financial instruments
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2012 2011

Market Cost Market Cost

Value Value
£000 £000 £000 £000
76,203 62,736 73,557 60,006
898,605 800,616 841,393 785,939
227 227 284 284
4911 4872 5,027 5,027
35,889 36,601 30,954 31,035
15,859 6,396 17,509 6,318
1,031,694 911,448 968,724 888,609

2012 2011

Market Cost Market Cost

Value Value
£000 £000 £000 £000
974,788 863,332 914,475 845473
15,859 6,396 17,5090 6,318
990,647 869,728 931,984 851,791
40,611 41,284 36,247 36,330
1,031,258 911,012 968,231 888,121

2012 2011

Market Cost Market Cost

Value Value
£0006 £000 £000 £000
76,183 62,716 73,503 59,951
898,605 8006186 840,972 785522
227 227 284 284
4 911 4872 5,027 5,027
35,473 36,185 30,936 31,019
15,859 6,396 17,509 6,318
1,031,258 911,012 968,231 888,121
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c) Listed Investments
2012 2011
Group Society Group Society
£000 £000 £000 £000
Shares and other vanable yield secunhbes and
units in unit trusts 76,203 76,183 73,557 73,503
Debt secunties and other fixed income 898,605 898,605 841393 840,972
securtties
974,808 974788 914950 914,475
d} Financial assets at amortised cost

e)

9)

Fer loans and recevables at amortised cost, the carrying value 1s a reasonable
approximation of fair value

At the reporting date, there were no assets held at amortised cost that were either
Impaired or overdue

Other loans

Included within other loans are loans secured on policres with a cost and carrying value of
£14m (2011 £1 5m)

Denvative financial instruments, at fair value through profit or loss, held for trading

Included wathin the Group and Society's financial investmentis are seres of sterling
receiver swap options and equity hybrid recetver swap options with a fair value of £15 7m
(2011 £17 5m) that cost £6 2m (2011 £6 3m)

The contracts are not hsted on a recognised exchange, but are valued at the amount at
which the independent counterparty would be prepared to close cut the options

Each series 1s exercisable on a single fixed date up until 2040 The effect of exercising
sterling options at the exarcise date would be to convert a fixed norminal amount of cash
Into a fixed interest asset In the case of the equity hybnd recever swap options, the
amount of cash convertible into a fixed mterest asset vanes proportionately with the FTSE
100 Total Return Index subject to certain mimima and maximna at the date of exercise
The cash which would be used to fund the swaps is the expected future coupon and
redermnphon receipts from part of the fixed interest portfolio

Movements in fair value anse due to actual and perceved future movements in interest
rates and the FTSE 100 Total Return Index and are reflected in the long term business
technical account Fair value loss in the year amounted to £0 6m (2011 gains of £8 5m)

Coilateral
Included within the Group and Socicty’s ‘Deposits with credit institutions’ 13 £5 8m (2011

£7 3m) in relation to collateral received from a counterparty n respect of the derwative
contracts mentioned in (f) above An offsetting hiability 1s included in ‘Other creditors’
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16 Goodwill and Present Value of Acquired in force Business
Group
2012 2011
Goodwill Present Goodwill Present
Value of Value of
Acquired Acquired
Business Business
£000 £000 £000 £000
Cost
At 1 January (585) 5,370 (585) 5,370
At 31 December (585) 5,370 (585) 5,370
Amortisation
At 1 January 312 (3,077) 273 (2,751)
Amortisation during year 39 {286) 39 {326)
At 31 December 351 {3,363) 312 {(3,077)
Net book value at 31 December (234) 2,007 (273) 2,293
Net book value at 1 January (273) 2,293 {312) 2619

Negative goodwill ansing on the acquisition of Cntenon Life Assurance Limited 1s being amortised
on a straight-ine basis over fifteen years (2004 to 2018)

The present value of acquired in force business relates to the transfer of business from Family
Assurance Friendly Soctety in 2004 and the acquisition of SEB Trygg Life (UK) Assurance
Company Limited 1n 2006 The value 1s being amortised on a systematic basis, subject to an
annual impairment test

No present value of acquired business was recogrised on the acquisition of University Life

Assurance Society as doing so would have generated negative goodwill, which 1s not permitted by
UK accounting standards
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17

Society

Cost
At 1 January

At 31 December
Amortisation

At 1 January

Amortisation during year

At 31 December

Net book value at 31 December

Net book value at 1 January

2012
Goodwill] Present
value of
Acquired
Business
£000 £000

- 4,920

2011

Goodwill Present
Value of
Acquired
Business

£000

- 4,920

- (2,871)
- (275)

- (3,1486)

- 1,774

- 2,049

£000

4,920

4,920

(2,555)
(316)

(2,871)

2,049

2,365

The Society includes the present value of acquired in force business relating to the transfer from
Family Assurance Friendly Society in 2004  The valueis being amortised on a systematic basis,

subject to an annual iImparment test
Assets held to cover linked habihties

Group and Society Balance Sheet

Assets held to cover linked liabilities

56

2012
Market Cost
Value
£000 £000

661,400 539,010

201
Market
Value
£000

644,839

Cost
£000

550,083
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18

Long Term Business Provision

The long term business provision s derived from the mathematical reserves calculated for
statutory soclvency purposes as follows

2012 2011
Group and Group and
Socrety Society
£000 £000
Gross amount
Mathematical reserves, before bonus 987,912 918,198
Cost of bonus added at year end 547 659
Zillmer adjustment - 20
FRS26 adjustment — sterling reserves {5,851) {12,243)
Long term business prowvision 982,508 906,634
Reinsurance
Mathematical reserves, before bonus 55,088 33,299
Long term business provision 55,086 33,299
Net amounts
Mathematical reserves, before bonus 932,826 884,899
Cost of bonus added at year end 547 659
Zillmer adjustment - 20
FRS26 adjustment — sterling reserves (5,951) (12,243)

Long term business provision 927,422 873,335

Bonus declared as a result of the valuation 1s included within the long term business provision
Valuation Method
Investment contracts are valued at amortised cost

For insurance contracts the long term business provision is calculated using the net premium
method for with profits business A gross premium method was used for the other main classes
of business other than credit hfe assurance, which was valued by accumulating premiums
received less commissions and claims paid

The valuation method includes an explicit allowance for existing vested annual bonuses It allows
for future annual bonuses on with profits business implicitly, by a reduction in the valuation rate of
Interest No allowance 1s made for final bonuses, these bonuses are not guaranteed and the rates
may be altered at any time

The valuaton method makes no allowance for voluntary discontinuance of contracts other than
unit linked pension pelicies Provisions released on discontinuance are no less than the
termination values paid, so this is a prudent assumption For unit inked pension business,
voluntary discontinuance normally results in policies being retained in paid-up status In this case
future margins may be madequate to cover future expenses, and the provision is set as the
greater of the armount assuming iImmediate conversion to paid-up status and that assuming
premiums continue throughout

The interest assumption 1s based on fixed interest index yields for regular premium contracts, and
on the yields on the backing assets for single premium contracts (principally annuiies), and for
deferred annuities in WPSF4 and WPSF6 Movements in interest rates thus affect the long term
business provision, but there will also be a simiar movement in asset values Mortality
assumptions are based on published statistics from the actuanal prefession adjusted, where
relevant, for expected future expenience
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Valuation basis

The valuation used the following assumptions for the main classes of business

Interest Rates
Product group

Ordinary Sub Fund
Guaranteed income and growth bonds
Other without profits Iife assurances
Life fund annuities 1n payment
Pension deferred annuities and assurances
Pension annuties in payment
With Profits Sub Fund 1
With profits Iife assurances and endowments
With Profits Sub Fund 4

Deferred annutties - series 1 regular prermium and
series 2

Deferred annuities - series 1 single premium

Annutties in payment and deferred annuities after
vesting

With Profits Sub Fund 5
Life annutties in payment
Pension annuites in payment
With Profits Sub Fund 6
Deferred annuities — with profits group 3
Deferred annutties — other with profits

Annuities in payment

*The comparatives for 2011 related to the Reliance Mutual With Profits Sub Fund

Mortality tables
Product group

Ail ordinary branch assurances in all sub
funds

All industnal branch assurances
Enhanced smoker annuities in payment

Smoker annuities In payment (see note)

Non-smoker annuities in payment {see Male
note) Female
Aggregate annuities in payment (OSF/RM Male
WPSF) Female
Aggregate annuties in payment, and Male
deferred annuities post-vesting (WPSF4) Female
(see note)
Aggregate annuwities in payment (WPSFS) Male
Female
Aggregate annuities in payment (WPSFG) Male
Female
58

Interest Rate

2012

339%
164%
253%
2 05%
316%

164%

145%

0 95%
2 44%

211%
2 64%

282%
190%
275%

Mortality table 2012

A00

ELT16
90% RGA base
152 5% PCAQ0

67 5% PCMAQO
65 0% PCFAOQ

120 0% PCMAQOD
107 5% PCFADQ

107 5% PCMAQO
85 0% PCFAD0

82 5% PCMAQO
70 0% PCFAQD

120 0% PCMAQOOD
102 5% PCFAQO

Interest Rate
2011

3 40%*
177%"
2 36%"*
221%*
3 68%"

102%*

168%

124%
276%

2 46%
307%

332%
2 06%
3 34%

Mortalty table 2011

A00

ELT16
90% RGA base
150% PAS2

67 5% PAS2
87 5% PAY2

115% PCA 92
115% PCA 92

104 5% PMA92
95 0% PFAQ2

80% PCA 92
B0% PCA 92

115% PCA 92
115% PCA 92
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Product group Mortahty table 2012 Mortality table 2011
Deferred annuities pre-vesting (WPSF4) 80% A00 80% AQO
Deferred annuities pre-vesting (WPSF&) 80% AQ0 80% AQO

All mortality tables use the gender specific tables for males and females Forexampie A0D refers
to AMQO for males and AFQQ for fermales PCMAQQ refers to the graduation of amounts data for
pensions combined published in CM! working papers 21 and 22, 2006 and CMI report 23, 2008,
projected using CMI 2011 improvement factors as ahove

Notes

Smoker annuities In payment Males 152 5% of the mortality table was used for ages up to 70
The percentage then reduced linearly to 127 5% at age 85 and 102 5% at age 120 Females
152 5% of the mortality table was used for ages upto 70  The percentage then reduced linearly
to 127 5% at age 85 and 102 5% at age 120

Non-smoker annuities

Males 67 5% of the mortality table was used for ages up to 70  The percentage then increased
lIinearly to 77 5% at age 85 and 87 5% atage 120 Females 65% of the mortality table was used
foragesupto 70 The percentage then increased linearly to 75% at age 85 and 80% at age 120

Aggregate annuities in WPSF4 (males only} 107 5% of the table was used for ages up to 60
The percentage then reduced hnearly to 87 5% at ages 85 and above

Mortality improvements
Product group Mortality Improvements Mortality Improvements
2012 2011
Male Female Male Female
Enhanced smoker annuittes in payment  100% RGA 100% RGA 100% RGA 100% RGA
mprovement mprovernent mprovement improvement
Smoker annuities in payment 75% MC 75% MC 75% MC 75% MC
minimum 2 0% 175% 13125% 10%
Non-smoker annuities in payment 75% MC 75% MC 75% MC 75% MC
minimurm 20% 175% 13125% 10%

Aggregate annuities in payment (OSF*) 100% MC 75% MC 100% MC 75% MC

minimum 20% 175% 175% 13125%
Aggregate annuities in payment, and 100% MC 75% MC 100% MC 75% MC
deferred annuities post-vesting
(WPSF4)

minimum 2 0% 175% 175% 13125%
Aggregate annuities in payment 100% MC 75% MC 100% MC 75% MC
(WPSF5)

minimum 2 0% 175% 175% 13125%
Aggregate annuities in payment 100% MC 75% MC 100% MC 75% MC
(WPSF6)

minimum 2 0% 175% 175% 13125%

Annuitant mortality improvements set out above only apply to years after 2000 For earlter years,
100% of the published improvement table has been used

*The comparatives for 2011 related to the Reliance Mutual With Profits Sub Fund (RM WPSF)
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Margin for credit default risk

2011
basis points

Nud

73

73

115
156
495
n/a
n/a

The figures shown are the average deduction as margins were deducted on a bond by bond

Renewal Exps —

Bond Rating 2012
basis points
Sovereign debt Nil
AAA a1
AA 67
A 86
BBB 128
BB 281
B n/a
CCC n/a
basis
Expenses
Product Group

All industnal branch business

Ordinary Sub Fund
OB Iife assurances except as specified below
Single premium unit inked investment bonds

Linked and non-linked guaranteed income
bonds (annual rollovers)

Linked and non-linked guaranteed income
bonds (3- and 5- yearly rollovers)

Linked and non-inked guaranteed growth
bonds (annual rollovers)

tinked and non-hnked guaranteed growth
bonds (3- and 5- yearly rollovers)

All annutties 1in payment

All pension deferred annuities and assurances
with Profits Sub Fund 4

Annuities in payment

Deferred annuibies

Assurances

With Profits Sub Fund 5 — all policies,
expressed as % SA

With Profits Sub Fund 6
All ife assurances
Annuties in payment

All pension deferred annuities

prermium paying
£

2012

15 88

3175

3175

3829
38 29

03%

3337

3337

2011

18 00*

36 00*

36 00"

37 87
37 87

03%

3301

3301

Renewal

2012

032

11 11
23 81

3175

3175

1588

3175

29 60

11 11

38 29
13 40

13 40

1168
33 37

1168

*The comparative for 2011 related to the Reliance Mutual With Profits Sub Fun
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Exps ~ paud
up
£

2011

0 36"

12 60*
27 o0*

36 00*
36 00~
18 00*
36 00”
31 50*

12 60"

37 87
1326

1326

1155
33

1155

Claim Expenses

£
2012

11 59

7725
7725

773

3090

773

3090

212 44

474 75

22972

82 58

227 10

2011

17 78*

118 50*
118 50*

11 85"

47 40*

11 85*

47 40"

325 88*

459 65

22725

8169

224 65
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Options and Guarantees

Options and guarantees of the following types are included in the business written by the Society

1

Guaranteed annuity rate options

These exist on various contracts in OSF, WPSF5 and WPSF6 where the policy proceeds
at retirement (which are not guaranteed, either because they depend on future unit fund
prices or because they include non guaranteed bonuses) are used to purchase an
annuity at a guaranteed rate In most cases the guaranteed rate 1s beneficial for non
smokers, and tn some cases It 1s also beneficial for smokers The contracts in WPSFG
and most of the contracts in OSF are partly protected by a portfolio of investment
denvative mstruments designed to provide funds when the guarantees are onerous

The reserve for guaranteed annuity options 1s calculated using a generally recognised
closed-form stochastic formula which 1s similar to the standard Black-Scholes formula
adapted to value guaranteed annuty options An allowance 1s made for the take-up rate
of the options as policyholders often choose to take part of their benefits as a tax free
lump sum The take up rate 1s inhially set to be a prudent assessment of current
experience The take up rate 1s increased gradually for longer term options so that a
take-up rate of 95% is assumed for retirement dates 20 years or more into the future

A check 1s made to determine whether a deterministic valuaton at a cautious interest rate
would produce a greater aggregate reserve The higher reserve s taken This is the
case for options in WPSF5 and for some of the options in OSF

Technical provisions include £33 7m (2041 £32 8m) in respect of the additional costs of
the guarantees The technical provisions have been established with prudential margins
for adverse deviation from the central assumptions To the extent that economic
conditions move adversely, or policyholders elect to withdraw benefits at imes when the
guarantees are more valuable, the Society is exposed to nsk  This is because the
protection provided by the asset portfolio that backs the technical provisions 1s not
complete

Matunty and surrender value guarantees

Various unit inked policies have minimum guaranteed values either at maturity or on
surrender at various dates An additional provision of £485,000 (2011 £655,000)1s held
within the long-term business provision for these guarantees The provision I1s assessed
using stachastic simulations of future mvestment scenarnos A provision 1s held thatwill
be adequate at a 99% probability level, thus under all but the most extreme changes in
market conditions contractual benefits to policyholders would be able to be pad

Guaranteed insurabiity options

These exist on vanous policies where the insured can take out a further contract on
normal rates without providing evidence of health atthat time The experience 1s that this
option 1s not exercised (fewer than ten chents have exercised it In the last five years) In
most cases the option 1s only exercisable on an event such as the buth of a child or
moving house Total provisions of £33,000 (2011 £60,000) are held within the long-term
business provision in respect of these options

Guaranteed cash options

These exist on various deferred annuity contracts in WPSF4 The option is only valuable
If interest rates are in excess of 8% pa With improving mortality this threshold
increases All affected policies are with profits, and no specific provision 1s held for this
option bearing 1N mind current interest rates  Any change n interest rates that would
cause these oplions to be financially significant would reduce the financial significance of
the guaranteed annuity rate options described above by a greater amount
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Sensitivities

The factors with the greatest influence on the long term business provision are the interest, credit
default and expense assumptions and, for annuities In payment, the mortality assumption
Further details can be found i note 2

A 20% increase in the valuation rates of interest would reduce the long term business provision by
£56 2m

A reduction of 10% in the expense assumptions for all contracts wou'ld reduce the long term
business provision by £6 3m

A decrease of 25% n the mortalty base percentages used for annuities in payment would
Increase the group long-term business provision by £15 8m

Anncrease of 33% in credit default margins would ncrease the long term business provision by
£22 9m

19 Technical Provisions

Long Term Long Term Total Long Claims
Business Business Term Outstanding
Provision —  Provision — Business
Insurance & Investment Provision
Investment contracts
with dpf
contracts
£000
£000 £000 £000
a Group Balance Sheet
Gross technical 906,634 13,842
provisionsBalance at 1 896,890 9,744
January 2012
Payments made to
policyholders of, and fees (1,025) -
deducted from, investment - (1,025) 76,899 (451)
contracts 76,396 503
Movement for the year
Balance at 31 December 2012 973,286 9,222 982,508 13,391
Rewnsurers' Share
Balance at 1 January 2012 33,299 - 33,299 122
Movement for the year 21,787 - 21,787 106
Balance at 31 December 2012 55,086 - 55,086 228
Net technical provisions
Balance at 31 December 2012 918,200 9,222 927,422 13,163
Balance at 1 January 2012 863,591 9,744 873,335 13,720

| Technical provisions for claims outstanding include amounts relating to The Relance Fire &
| Accident Insurance Corporation Limited  The change in these provisions 1s included within “other
technical iIncome” in the profit and loss account
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b Society Balance Sheet

Gross technical provisions
Balance at 1 January 2012

Payments made to pelicyholders
of, and fees deducted from,
investment contracts

Movement for the year

Balance at 31 December 2012
Reinsurers' Share

Balance at 1 January 2012

Movement for the year

Balance at 31 December 2012

Net technical provisions
Balance at 31 December 2012

Balance at 1 January 2012

With profits investment contracts

Included within the long-term business provision are amounts of £10 7m (2011 £11 1m) relating
to liabihities under with profits investment contracts, where there 1s no transfer of significant
insurance nsk These investment contracts contamn a discretionary participatory feature which
entitles the holder to receive, as a supplement to the guaranteed benefits, additional benefits or
bonuses through participation in the surplus ansing from the assets heid in the relevant
Investment with profits fund These supplemental discretionary participatory returns are subject to
the discretion of the Group The Group has the discretion within the constraints of the terms and
conditions of the instruments and UK regulation, to aliocate the surplus to the contract holders

The Group cannot measure reliably the fair value of with profits investment contracts due to the
lack of a reliable basis to measure the supplemental discretionary returns and because there 1s

Long Term Long Term Total Long Claims
Business Business Term Quistanding
Provision — Provision — Business
Insurance & Investment Provision
Investment contracts
with dpf
contracts
£000 £000 £000 £000
896,890 9,744 906,634 13,729
- {1,025) (1,025) (446)
76,396 503 76,899 -
973,286 9222 982,508 13,283
33,299 - 33,299 122
21,787 - 21,787 106
55,086 - 55,086 228
918,200 9,222 927,422 13,055
863,591 9,744 873,335

not an active market for such investments
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20

Technical provisions for inked habilities

Group and Society

Unit hnked investment Unit inked insurance

contracts contracts Total

2012 2011 2012 2011 2012

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
At 1 January 116,178 475589 228,661 269,272 644,839 744,861
Daposits receved from policyhalders
under investment contracts 9,340 9,733 - - 9,340 8,733
Payments made to policyholders of, and
fees deducted from, investment {20,180) (21,843) - - (20,180) (21,843)
contracts
Change in technical provision as shown
in the technical account 31,104 (47 ,301) (3,703) (40,611) 27,401 (87.912)
At 31 December 436,442 416178 224,958 228,661 661,400 644 839 '

21

a)

Financial iabihties in respect of unit inked mvestment contracts are carried in the balance sheet at
amortised cost The related farr value of these financial habilites 1s £436 4m for both the Group
and Society, {2011 £416 2m) which is equivalent to the amount payable under the contract,
based on the current fund value

Capital and Liabilities — Regulatory Capital Position

Capital Management

The Society and the Group are subject to a number of regulatory capital tests  In particular the
avallable capital resources need to exceed the Group’s caprtal resource requirements at all times

Capital resource requirements compnse the Insurance Capital Requirements of the insurance
companies In the Group, the Resllience Capital Requirement of the Society and the Capital
Resource Requirement of Reliance Unit Managers Limited  The Society and the Group have met
all regulatory capital requirements throughout the year except in relation to The Reliance Fire and
Acadent Insurance Corporation Limited which has not met its individual capial resource
requirement for a number of years

Separate capital resource requirements are calculated for the seven with profits sub funds, but
there 18 no requirement that each indvidually needs to have available capital resources o ensure
that its capital resource requirements are met The documents constituting the seven sub funds,
and the Socliety’s Principles and Practices of Financial Management, indicate that surplus assets
in any of the sub funds can only be used to enhance the benefits of appropnate policies within that
sub fund However should any sub fund have a shortfall of assets over guaranteed benefit
labilities, recourse is avalable to surplus assets within other sub funds

With profits sub funds 2 to 6 (WPSF2 to WPSFB) were created following various schemes of
transfer of business

The Society and Group have no shareholders’ funds and also have no borrowings

As a mutual, the Group has only imited access to external sources of capital Hence the Group's
capital management objectives are

» To match the profile of its assets and liabilities, taking into account the nature, term and
currency of the habilities

* To achieve the maximum long-term return on assets not required to match habilities,
commensurate with an appropnate level of nsk
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In presenting the capital statement and movement in capital resources in sections (b) and (c)
below, the smaller sub funds, 2, 3 and 5 have been merged The capttal resources presented
below are as calculated on a regulatory basis for the Insurance Annual Return  The capital
resources on a realistic basis are not shown

b} Capital Statement

2012
OSF  WPSF1 WPSF 2, WPSF 4 WPSF 6 Total Consol Group
dandb5 Society adj Total
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
£000
Fund for Future
Appropnations 38,034 19,311 9,018 24,679 4,758 95,800 (1) 95799
Adjustments on to
regulated basis
Positive valuation
differences
Negative valuation
differences (5.951) - - - - (5,851) - (5,951)
Inadnussible assets (1,374) (909) - - - (2,283) 1 (2,282)
Total available capital 30,709 18,402 9,018 24,679 4,758 87,566 - 87,566
resource
The capital statement shows an increase in avallable capital resources of £17 5m dunng the year
which 1s analysed in the table in section (c) below As the Group is not required to report results
on a “realistic” basis, the policyholder liabilities do not include allowance for future final bonuses
Analysis of policyholders’ liabilities
OSF WPSF1  WPSF 2, WPSF 4 WPSF 6 Total
3&5 Socety
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 and
Group
£000
With profits insurance contracts - 8,074 15,282 46,464 83,913 153,676
With profits investment contracts 266 - - - 10,124 10,387
Non profit iInsurance contracts 618,651 474 18,422 98,918 33 754,137
Non profit investment contracts 9,222 - - - - 9,222
628,139 8,548 33,704 145,382 94,070 927,422
Unit inked insurance contracts 224 921 - 37 - - 224 958
Unit inked investment contracts 436,442 - - - - 436,442
Tota! technical habilities net of 1,289,502 8,548 33,741 145,382 94 070 1,588,822
reassurance _—
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RM  WPSF2, WPSF4 WPSF6 Total
WPSF 3and 5 Soctety
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Fund for Future
Appropnations 58,5657 8,523 17,079 1,015 85174
Adjustments on to
regulated basis
Positive valuation _ _ _ . B
differences
Negative valuation
differences {12,223) - - - (12,223)
Inadmissible assets (2,814) - - - (2,814
Total availabte capital
resource 43,520 8,523 17,079 1,015 70137

Consolidation
adjustments
£000

(29}

29

Group Total
£000

85,145

(12,223)
(2,785)

70,137

The capital statement for 2011 shows a decrease in avalable capital resources of £23 3m dunng
the year which 1s analysed in the table in section (c) below As the Group 1s not reguired to report
resuits on a “realistic” basis, the policyholder habilites do not include allowance for future final

bonuses

Analysis of policyholders’ habilities

RM WPSF WPSF2, WPSF4 WPSF8  Total Society

3and5 and Group

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000

With profits insurance contracts 11,407 16,673 117,854 84,946 230,880

With profits investment contracts 342 - - 10,798 11,140

Non profit iInsurance contracts 562,823 19,042 39,676 30 621,571

Non profit Investment contracts 9,744 - - - 9,744

584,316 35,715 157,530 95,774 873,335

Unit inked insurance contracts 228,467 194 - - 228,661

Unit inked investment contracts 416,178 - - - 416,178

Total technical habthties net of

reassurance 1,228,961 35,909 157,530 95,774 1,518,174
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c)

2012

Movement in capital resources

The capital statements show an increase n avallable capital resources of £17 5m durning the year
which is analysed in the table below As the Group 1s not required to report results on a “realistic”
basis, the policyholder habilies do not include allowance for future final bonuses

RM WPSF/ WPSF 2, 3 WPSF 4 WPSF 6 Total Society
OSF and and 5 and Group
WPSF1 £000 £000 £000 £000
£000
Available Capital Resource 43,520 8,523 17,079 1,015 70,137
at 1 January 2012
Expected change based on 8,966 2,639 10,514 4,708 26,827
December 2011 assumptions
Valuation method and assumption
Change in mortality assumptions (4,400) 24 517 128 (3,731)
Change in expense assumptions {12,675) {12) (184) 233 {12,638)
{17,075) 12 333 361 {16,369)
Effect of new remsurance treaty 6,305 579 5832 - 12,716
Non guaranteed bonuses patd (6,307) (1,656) (2,873) (932) (11,768)
Investment Retums
Market movements 13,168 {1,097) (6,240) (395) 5,436
Change in inadmissible assets 480 - - - 480
Other 54 18 34 1 107
Available capital resource
at 31 December 2012 49,111 9,018 24,679 4,758 87,566

Final bonuses are paid from the Profit and Loss Account but are not included in the long term
business provision and thus payments made reduce capital resources

Changes in the valuation basis and methodology overall have had a moderate impact except in
OSF and WPSF4 The individual impact of these changes on each fund has been affected by the
mix of business and assets held in each fund, sensitivities of the valuation basis to changes In
assumptions are reported in note 18

Key factors in the movement for RM WPSF, OSF and WPSF1 include increased expense
reserves, however from a total Society and Group perspective this has been offset by the effect of
the new reinsurance treaty

It has not been practical to analyse the movement in capital resources separately for RM WPSF,
OSF and WPSF1 dunng the year However the split of capital resource at 31 December 2012
between OSF and WPSF1 can be seen in note 21(b)

At 31 December 2012 available capial represented 180% of the Group's total capital resource
requirements (2011 158%)
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The decrease in avallable capital resources of £23 3m during 2011 15 analysed in the table below

Available Capital Resource
at 1 January 2011

Expected change based on
December 2010 assumptions

Valuatton method and assumption

Relating to benefit guarantees
Mortality assumptions

Expense and inflation tems
Valuation discount rate methods

Credit default nsk

Non guaranteed bonuses pard

Investment items
Equity and property movements
Interest rate changes

Changes in provisions

Inter-fund transfers

Movement in iInadmissible assets
Other items

Available capital resource
at 31 December 2011

RM WPSF

£000

63,111

2,693

(535)

(6,392)
6,655

(108)

2,410

(1,461)
(17.467)

(18,928)

(2,054)
(332)
(467)

(2,805)

(5.658)

43,520

WPSF 2, 3

and 5
£000

9,827

106

108

47
47

292

366

(844)
(1,326)

(2,170}

563

(461;

102

8,523

WPSF 4
£000

18,904

(68)

17,079

WPSF 6

£000

1,517

(558)

(80)
(1,704)

(1,784)

(111)
332

8937

1,158

1,015

Total Society
and Group
£000

93,359

3,546

813)
2,053
(6,029)
8,223

3,434

1,675

{4,580)
(23,404)

(27,984)

(1,602)

@67)
(1,824)

(3,893)

70,137

Final bonuses are patd from the Profit and Loss Account but are not included in the long term

business provision and thus payments made reduce capital resources

Other factors include the difference between the actual and expected emergence of margins
retained in the valuation basis  Changes in the valuation basis and methodology overall have had
mirimal impact except in WPSF 4 The individual impact of these changes on each fund has
been affected by the mix of business and assets held in each fund sensitivities of the valuation

basis to changes in assumptions are reported 1n note 18

Changes in investment returns were the pnmary factory for the reduction in the available capital

resource over the year

At 31 December 2011 avallable capital represented 158% of the Group's total capital resource

requirements
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22.

23

Tangible Assets

Group and Society

Cost
Brought forward
Additions
Fully depreciated items written off
At 31 December 2012
Depreciation
Brought forward
Charge for the year
Fully depreciated tems written off
At 31 December 2012
Book value at 31 Becember 2012

Book value at 31 December 2011

Deferred Acquisition Costs

On msurance contracts and with profits
investment contracts
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Total

£000

727
189
(420)

496

2011

Computer Office
Hardware Equipment
and software
£000 £000
628 99
187 2
(420) -
395 101
338 59
283 13
(420) -
201 72
194 29
290 40
2012
Group Society Group
£000 £000 £000
251 251 313

397
296
(420)
273
223

330

Society
£000

313
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24

Deferred Taxation

Group Society

£000 £000
Deferred tax asset at 1 January 2012 335 335
Movement in undiscounted deferred tax asset (156) (1586)
Movement in discount 15 15
Deferred tax asset at 31 December 2012 194 194

Net deferred tax assets are included within “Other debtors”
Net deferred tax provisions are included within “Provisions for other risks and charges”

Group Society
2012 2011 2012 2011

£000 £000 £000 £000
Deferred tax (provision)/asset on

Unreheved expenses 229 400 229 400
Deferred acquisition costs {39) (47 (39) (47)
Other 7 - 7 -
Undiscounted deferred tax asset 197 353 197 353
Discount (3) (18) (3) (18)
Discounted deferred tax asset 194 335 194 335
Deferred tax asset/(habiiity) on pension hability/ 96 {11) 96 {(11)

asset (note 27)

Asset at end of year including deferred tax on
pension asset/lability 290 324 290 324

At 31 December 2012 deferred tax assets were nil (2011 - £7 6m) Due to a change in the
calculation of ife tax from 1 January 2013 the previous deferred tax asset not recognised i1s now
worthless as the business they related to feli out of the scope of the tax

Deferred tax is provided on certain unrealised gains and deemed disposals within the iinked
funds This provision 1s refliected m assets held to cover inked habihies  The amount of the
provision at 31 December 2012 1s £1 4m (2011 - £1 3m)
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25

26

27

Provisions for Other Risks and Charges

Group and Society

Onerous

Leases

£000

Prowision at 1 January 2012 242
Amount credited to profit and loss

account {150)

Amounts utiised dunng the year (92)

Provision at 31 December 2012 -

The proviston for future expenses on onerous leases on former offices is stated after offsetting
projected income from subletting  Only one property now remains which is sublet at the same
cost as the headlease As a result there 1s no longer a requirement for a provision

Other Creditors including taxation and social security

2012 2011
Group Society Group Soclety
£000 £000 £000 £000
Taxation and Social Secunty 1,513 1,444 1,820 1,859
Collateral held 5,800 5,800 7,300 7,300
Other creditars 2,257 2,247 787 783

9,670 9,491 10,007 9,942

Pension Costs

Until 30 June 2010, the Society’s employees (where eligible) were members of Reliance Pension
Scheme which provided defined benefits to members based on their service with the Society and
level of remuneration

As of 30 June 2010, this defined benefit scheme was closed to future accrual for all but two
members and all remaining active members become deferred members

The Society’s employees were then offered the chance to participate in a defined contribution
scheme to which the Society would also contribute

Defined Contribution Scheme

The contnbution to the defined contribution scheme, which commenced on 1 July 2010, in the
year amounted to £0 3m (2011 £0 2m)

Defined Benefit Scheme

Dunng the year ended 31 December 2012 the Society made contrbutions (including deficit

funding} of £1 Om (2011 £1 2m) The scheme is now closed to future accrual for all but two
members

The last full valuation of the scheme was carrned out as at 1 April 2010 and this was updated to 31
December 2012 by qualified independent actuaries
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The principal assumptions used in the updated valuation were as follows

At 31 December 2012 201
% %
Rates of inflation
+ Retail Prices Index (RPI) 33 32
» Consumer Price Index (CP) 28 22
Increases to pensionable salary 30 30
Increases to pension payment (non-GMP) 24 24
Discount rate 44 50

The mortality assumptions used were

2012 2011
years years
Longevity at age 65 for current pensioners
Men 227 225
Women 24 2 241
Longevity at age 65 for future pensioners
Men 24 9 248
Women 260 259

Analysis of net penston scheme assets and liabilihies

The assets of the scheme and the expected rates of return are summanised as follows

Valueat Expected Value at  Expected

31  long-term 31 long-term

December rate of December rate of

return return

2012 2012 2011 2011

£000 % £000 %

Market value of scheme assets

Equities 6,146 7 30 5,532 720

UK Government fixed interest secunties 10,389 330 9,399 320

Corporate bonds (inc overseas bonds) 3153 430 3,122 4 90

Other 1,651 200 1,753 200
Total market value of scheme assets 21,339 19,808
Present value of scheme liabilities 22,349 17,407
(Deficitysurplus In the scheme (1,010) 2,399
Restrniction of surplus - (2,311)
Limited (deficit)/surplus (1,010) 88
Related deferred tax 96 (11)
Net pension scheme (liability)/asset (914) 77
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Reconciliation of present value of scheme habilities

2012 2011

£000 £000
At 1 January 17,407 17,942
Current service cost 178 159
Interest cost 868 956
Actuanal loss/{gan) on iabiities due to expenence 75 (389)
Actuanal loss on liabilities due to assumption changes 4,058 1,245
Benefits paid {238) (2,508)
At 31 December 22,349 17,407

Past service costs in 2011 relate to the removal of the practice of granting discretionary pension
increases on pre 6 April 1997 non-GMP pension during that year

Reconciliation of fair value of scheme assets

2012 2011

£000 £000
At 1 January 19,806 19,609
Expected return on scheme assets g09 1,072
Actuanal (loss)/gain on assets (160) 470
Contnbutions paid by the employer 1,022 1,161
Benefits paid {238) (2,508)
At 31 December 21,338 19,806

Scheme assets do not include any of Relance Mutual Insurance Society Limited’s own financial
Instruments or any property occupied by Rellance Mutual Insurance Society Limited

The expected return on scheme assets 15 derived as the weighted average of the individual
expected rates of return on each major category of assets

The actual return on scheme assets in the year was a gain of £0 749m (2011 gain £1 542m)

Analysis of amounts charged to profit and loss account

2012 2019
£000 £000
Investment iIncome
Expected return on pension scheme assets 909 1,072
Interest cost of pension scheme habiliies (869) (956)
Included in Investment Income 40 116
Penston cost
Current service cost 178 159
Included in net operating expenses 178 159

73




Reliance Mutual Insurance Society Limited

Analysis of actuarnial pension scheme loss after tax

2012 2011

£000 £000
Actual return less expected return on pension scheme assets (160) 470
Expenence gains and losses ansing on scheme liabilities (75) 389
Effect of changes in demographic and financial assumptions (4,058) {1,245)
Restriction of surplus 2,311 (811)
Actuanal loss recogmised (1,982) (1,187)
Deferred tax thereon 187 143
Pension scheme loss after tax (1.795) (1,054)

As the Group does not prepare a “Statement of Total Recognised Gains and Losses” these
losses are included in the technical account as Actuanal losses on pension scheme

Actuanal gains and |osses

The cumulative amount of actuanal losses that have been recognised in the profit and loss
account, and therefore the Fund for Future Appropriations, net of deferred tax 1s £6 4m (2011
loss of £4 6m)

Expected contributions

The Society’s contributions expected to be paid to the scheme for the year ended 31 December
2013 are estimated to be £1 Om

History of present value of scheme habilities, fair value of asset values and experience gains

and losses
2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Present value of scheme (22,349} (17,407) (17,942) (36,682) (31,031
iabilities
Farr value of assets 21,339 19,806 19,609 37,565 32,832
(Defioit)/surplus {1,010) 2,389 1,667 883 1,801
Restriction of surplus - 2,311y (1,500) - -
{1,010) 38 167 883 1,801
Deferred tax 96 (11) {19) {93) (189)
Net (deficit)/surplus {914) 77 148 790 1,612
Experence {loss)/gan on (75) 389 128 1,107 345
habilites
Expenence (loss)/gamn on assets {160) 470 (19) 4,088 (8,376)

28 Contingent Liabilities

There are no contingent habilittes (2011 no contingent habilities)
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29,

30

Operating Lease Commitments

The Society has operating lease commitments n respect of a former branch office, a storage
facility and its disaster recovery site  The commitment during the year following the year of these
accounts under non-cancellable leases 15 as follows

2012 2011
£000 £000

Land and buildings
Expiring in less than 1 year 11 -
Expinng between 2 to 5 years - 115
Expiring thereafter 10 10

The former branch office is sublet at the same cost as the head lease
Transactions with Related Parties

The Society has taken advantage of the exemption within Financial Reperting Standard 8 —
Related Party Transactions not to disclose transactions and year end balances with its wholly
owned subsidianes

During the year the Society Invested in The Bntish Life Unit Trust, which 1s managed by Reliance
Umit Managers Limited, a group company Transactions and year end balances of holdings in the
Trust were

2012 2011
No of Unit No of Unit
Units Value Units Value
000 £000 000 £000
a Group heldings

Units purchased 3 12 34 159
Units sold 3,226 15,132 47 221
Holding at 31 December 65,818 308,622 69,082 313,631

b Society holdings
Units purchased 3 12 32 147
Units sold 3,259 15,098 47 221
Holding at 31 December 65,812 308,595 69,069 313,573

In addition the Rellance Pension Scheme invested in The Brntish Life Unit Trust 815,500
units were held throughout the year The value of the holding at 31 December 2012 was
£3,759,913 (2011 - £3,702,370)

No directors or senior managers were In receipt of loans from the company at any tme during the
year

All directors, except one newly appointed executive director, and some sentor managers are
Members of the Society and as such are policyholders on the same terms as available to
members of staff

During the year the Society provided a 99 99% subsidiary company, The Reliance Fire and
Accident Insurance Corporation Limited, with management, investment and administration
services for which it charged £28,000 (2011 £27,000)

As at the balance sheet date the balance due to the Society from the Rellance Fire and Accident
Insurance Corporation Limited was £8,000 (2011 £9,000)
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